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istration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Bank for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial
year to the date of the report are:

Dato’ Mohamed Khadar Bin Merican (appointed on 1.03.2021)
Yves Maurice Guy Marie Drieux

Joris Maria A. Dierckx

Vijayam Nadarajah

Faisal bin Ismail

Dato Abdullah Mat Noh (retired on 22.03.2021)

Jean-Pierre Roger Beno Bernard (retired on 22.03.2021)

Chia Seng Leng (retired on 03.09.2021)

Wahid Ali Mohd Khalil (resigned w.e.f 01.03.2022)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are banking related financial services and Islamic banking
business.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Bank
during the financial year.
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of operations of the Bank for the financial year are as follows

RM’'000
Profit before tax 1,312
Income tax expense (576)
Profit for the year 736

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than those disclosed in the financial statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the financial year, there was no issuance of new ordinary shares or debentures
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EVENT SIGNIFICANT TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Event significant to the financial year is disclosed in Note 35 of the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ FEES AND BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive
a benefit (other than the benefits shown under Directors’ remuneration in Note 24 to the financial
statements) by reason of a contract made by the Bank or by a related corporation with the Director
or with a company of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has
a substantial financial interest.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Bank a party to any arrangements whose
object was to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has held shares or had beneficial interest
in the shares of the Bank. Under the Bank’s Articles of Association, the Directors are not required to
hold any shares in the Bank.

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings required to be kept under Section 59 of the
Companies Act 2016, none of the Directors who held office at the end of the financial year held any
shares or debentures in the Bank or its holding company or subsidiaries of the holding company
during the financial year except as follows:

No. of ordi shares of EUR2 each

As at As at
Date of
retirement/
1.1.2021
Jean-Pierre Roger Beno Bernard 6,196 6,196
Chia Seng Leng 3,450 3,450
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Na of units

Batance Balance
as of as of
Date of
retirement/
1.1.2021 Granted 31.12.2021
BNP Paribas S. A.
Chia Seng Leng 1,020 1,020

By virtue of the above Directors’ interest in the ultimate holding company as detailed in the table
above, they are deemed to have an interest in the Bank and of its related companies to the extent
the ultimate holding company has interest.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the other Directors have any interest in the shares of related
companies during and as at the end of the financial year.

DIVIDENDS

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting ("AGM") to be held in financial year 2022, a final single
tier dividend of 0.113 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM734,500 (final dividend) in respect of
the financial year ended 31 December 2021 will be proposed for shareholder's approval.

The single-tier final dividend was approved by the Board of Directors on 8 June 2022.The financial
statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if
approved by the shareholder wili be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained earnings
in the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard BNP Paribas S.A., a financial institution incorporated in France, as the
immediate and ultimate holding company of the Bank.
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SHARE OPTIONS

No options have been granted by the Bank to any parties during the financial year to take up
unissued shares of the Bank.

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option to take
up unissued shares of the Bank. As of the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares
of the Bank under options.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

During the financial year, Directors and Officers of the Bank are covered under the Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability Insurance Group Policy in respect of liabilities arising from acts committed in their
respective capacity as, inter alia, Directors and Officers of the Bank, subject to the terms of the
policy. The total amount of Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance premium effected for the
Directors and Officers of the Bank are RM16,592 (2020: RM8,304).

COMPLIANCE WITH BANK NEGARA MALAYSIA'S EXPECTATIONS ON FINANCIAL
REPORTING

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Directors have taken reasonable steps to ensure
that Bank Negara Malaysia‘s expectations on financial reporting have been complied with including
those as set out in policy documents on Financial Reporting and Financial Reporting for Islamic
Banking Institutions.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

a. Before the financial statements of the Bank were prepared, the Directors took reasonable
steps:

i. to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad
debts and the making of provision for impairment, and satisfied themseives that all
known bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made
for doubtful debts; and

to ensure that any current assets, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary
course of business including the values of current assets as shown in the
accounting records of the Bank had been written down to an amount which the
current assets might be expected so to realise.
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
b. At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

which would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the
provision for impairment in the financial statements of the Bank inadequate to any
substantial extent; or

which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial
statements of the Bank misleading; or

n which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of
assets or liabilities of the Bank misleading or inappropriate.

c. At the date of this Report:

there are no charges on the assets of the Bank which have arisen since the end of
the financial year to secure the liability of any other person; and

ii there are no contingent liabilities in respect of the Bank which have arisen since
the end of the financial year other than those incurred in the normal course of
business of the Bank.

d. No contingent or other liability of the Bank has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in
the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Bank to meet
their obligations as and when they fall due.

e. At the date of this Report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this Report or the financial statements of the Bank which would render any
amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

f. In the opinion of the Directors:

the results of the operations of the Bank during the financial year were not
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature other than those disclosed in Note 35; and

Il there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the
date of this Report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature
likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Bank for the financial
year in which this Report is made other than those disclosed in Note 35.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of auditors’ remuneration are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The statement forms an Appendix in the Directors’ Report and is in a separate document.

BUSINESS PLAN AND OUTLOOK FOR THE NEXT FINANCIAL YEAR
d 31 December 2021

FY 2021 proved to be a challenging year for the Bank. The projected recovery (from Covid19) failed
to materialise and the lockdown during the year gave rise to more uncertainty and increased market
volatility. Client activities declined further (as compared to previous year).

The easing of the containment measures in Q4 resulted in Malaysia's Gross Domestic Product
(‘GDP’) to grow by 3.1% in 2021 as compared to a contraction of 5.6% in 2020. The rebound was
aided by recovery in the labour market as well as continued policy support. BNM maintained its
OPR rate at 1.75% throughout the year to lessen the economic impact on businesses and
household activities.

On the back of the challenging economic environment, the Bank registered profit after tax of RM0.7
million compared to RM89.2 million in 2020. Whilst the Bank was able to maintain revenue for
lending activities and its bond portfolio, Global Market's ("GM") business was significantly affected.
Credit quality of the loan portfolio continue to improve, with a write back of RM3.0 million for the
year. Operating expenses (excluding transfer pricing charges) was RM4.5 million (or 6.3%) lower
than previous year mainly due to effective cost management.

Amidst the challenging times, the Bank has further emphasised focus on its customers’ needs while
also safeguarding the well-being of its employees, ensuring operational continuity.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS PLAN AND OUTLOOK FOR THE NEXT FINANCIAL YEAR (CONTINUED)
Outlook 2022

Overall the economy grew by 3.1% for 2021 and unemployment rate declined to 4.6%. Malaysia's
GDP growth is forecasted between 5.5% to 6.5% in 2022, in line with International Monetary Fund
and World Bank projections. Drivers for the recovery are expected to come from the increase in
global demand, higher private sector expenditure and major investments in private and public
sectors. The roll-out of the Covid-19 booster vaccination programme, normalisation in economic
and social activities, and reopening of country’s borders would further strengthen the economic
growth.

The Bank is optimistic and foresees that there would be growth in deposits, loans, trade finance
and GM activities as sentiments improve.

The Bank as a whole remains focused in supporting its clients, providing tailored financial solutions
during this period of recovery.

RATINGS BY AN EXTERNAL RATING AGENCY

Rating Agency Malaysia (‘RAM’) 20 Sept 2021 Long Term — AA1
Short Term — P1
Outlook - Stable

RAM Ratings has upgraded BNP Paribas Malaysia Berhad’s long term financial institution rating
from AA2 to AA1, with a stable outlook. Concurrently RAM Ratings has reaffirmed the Bank’s short
term P1 rating. The Bank’s ratings reflect the ready parental support from BNP Paribas S.A. (the
Group), if needed, while also leveraging on its parent’s global franchise, international network and
technical expertise. BNP Paribas S.A. is one of the world's largest financial institutions and among
the globally systemically important banks identified by the Financial Stability Board.
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AUDITORS
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1148), have expressed their
willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 8 June 2022. Signed on behalf of the Board
Directors:

\(Lg’\m:«o

FAISAL BIN ISMAIL DATO’ MOHAMED KHADAR BIN MERICAN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

SHARIAH COMMITTEE’'S REPORT

In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful

In line with the regulatory requirement, this report serves as a disclosure on Shariah Governance
policies and practices, which includes the following;-

The Shariah Committee is an independent oversight function as required by Bank Negara Malaysia
(‘BNM’") and the Islamic Financial Services Act 2013 (‘IFSA 2013’).

In relation to the Bank’s Islamic Finance business, we have the responsibility to provide objective
and sound advice to BNP Paribas Malaysia Berhad (“the Bank”) to ensure that its aims and
operations, business, affairs and activities comply with the Shariah. We are accountable for the
quality, accuracy and soundness of our own decision or advice. We understand that the Board have
institutionalised a robust Shariah governance framework to ensure its oversight accountability over
Shariah governance and compliance reflect the integration of Shariah governance considerations
within the business and risk strategies.

In line with our responsibility, we have endorsed internal controls to ensure the operations of Islamic
Banking Window of the Bank comply with Shariah. We have conducted our deliberation in
accordance with the regulations issued by BNM and Securities Commission of Malaysia. The
regulations require that we comply with ethical requirements and to plan and perform the deliberation
to obtain reasonable assurance about the state of Shariah compliance of the Bank.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, we have reviewed

1 The principles and contracts relating to the transactions and applications introduced by the
Bank; and
2 The products, processes, procedures, activities, transactional documents and contracts

entered into and/or offered by the Bank.

For the purpose of these reviews, we have assessed the works carried out by the Shariah
Compliance Review, Shariah Audit and Operational Permanent Control review functions, which we
considered necessary to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
Bank has not violated Shariah rules and principles. We note that the reviews and audit carried out
by these functions, were planned and involved assessment based on the relevant test sampling for
each type of transactions, the relevant documentations and procedures adopted by the Bank.
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

SHARIAH COMMITTEE’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

(continued)

In our opinion, for the financial year ended 31 December 2021, nothing has come to the Shariah
Committee’s attention that causes the Shariah Committee to believe that the operations, business,
affairs and activities of the Bank involve any material Shariah non-compliances.

We, the members of Shariah Committee of the Bank, to the best of our knowledge, have obtained
sufficient and appropriate evidence to form Shariah compliant opinion that all Shariah advice issued
by us comply with the ruling of the Shariah Advisory Council of BNM and Securities Commission of
Malaysia during the financial year.

Dr Sa‘id Adekunle Mikail
(Interim Chairman)

Dr Nurul Aini Muhamed (appointed on 1.10.2021)
(Member)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No. 201001034168 (918091-T)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of BNP Paribas Malaysia Berhad (“the Bank”) give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act
2016 in Malaysia.

What we have audited

We have audited the financial statements of the Bank, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 15 to 142.

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), Chartered Accountants, Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan
Rakyat, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.0. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwc.com/my
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 201001034168 (918091-T)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Report of the Directors and Shariah Committee's Report, but does not include the financial
statements of the Bank and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Bank does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Bank, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements of the Bank or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

tements

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Bank
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements of the Bank that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

al statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Bank as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

12



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Registration No. 201001034168 (918091-T)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(a)

)

(©

@

(e

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Bank,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Bank or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Bank,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Bank represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

13



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD (CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 201001034168 (918091-T)

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the member of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the

Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this report.

PLT L N
03482/01/2024 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
8 June 2022
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 5 1,435,996 1,072,884
Reverse repurchase agreements 314,632 974,678
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6 444,422 413,967
(IKFVTPLH)
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) 7 1,191,901 1,335,231
Loans, advances and financing 8 1,301,885 1,338,407
Derivative financial assets 9 706,669 1,296,293
Other assets 10 70,565 195,077
Property, plant and equipment 11 4,778 7,632
intangible assets 12 24
Tax recoverable 13,788 7,717
Deferred tax assets 13 3,596 3,416
TOTAL ASSETS 5,488,232 6,645,226
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Deposits from customers 14 2,142,425 2,300,820
Deposits and placements of banks and
other financial institutions 15 416,102 840,883
Repurchase agreements 285,353
Derivative financial liabilities 9 552,740 1,111,173
Other liabilities 16 1,112,035 1,226,532
Subordinated term loan 17 387,635
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,610,937 5,764,761
Share capital 18 650,000 650,000
Retained profits 210,278 223,911
Reserves 19 17,017 6,554
SHAREHOLDER’'S EQUITY 877,295 880,465
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S
EQUITY 5,488,232 6,645,226
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 30 106,033,085 98,187,436

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note
Interest income 21
Interest income for financial assets at FVTPL 21
Interest expense 22
Net interest income
Net income from Islamic banking business 34
Other operating (losses)/income 23
Other operating expenses 24
Expected credit losses 25
Profit before tax
Income tax expense 26

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Net changes in fair value
Net change in cash flow hedge
Other comprehensive (loss)/income

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

2021
RM’000

100,667
35,950
(22,884)

113,733
468

114,201

(38,682)

(77,239)
3,032

1,312
(576)

736

(4,799)
893
(3,906)

(3,170)

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
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2020
RM’000

123,293
25,543
(31,178)

117,658
344

118,002

102,786

(105,117)
2,563

118,234
(28,993)

89,241

4,936

4,936

94,177
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustment for:
Unrealised loss/(gain) on derivative financial instrument
Unrealised loss on financial assets at FVTPL
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign exchange
Unrealised loss/(gain) on reverse repurchase agreements
Realised (gain)/loss on repurchase agreements
Amortisation of premium less accretion of discount
Realised gain on financial assets at FVOCI
Interest income on financial assets at FVOCI
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Expected credit losses write back for impairment
on loans, advances and financing

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes

(Increase)/Decrease in:
Reverse repurchase agreements
Financial assets at FVTPL
Loans, advances and financing
Property, plant and equipment
Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in:
Deposit from customers
Deposit and placements of banks and other
financial institution
Derivative financial assets/liabilities
Repurchase agreements
Subordinated term loan
Other liabilities

Cash used in operating activities
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities
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2021
RM'000

1,312

35,916
196
49,732
348
(313)
14,622

(41,676)
3,139
24

(3,032)

60,268

659,698
(30,651)
39,554

461
124,513

(158,395)

(424,781)
(53,564)
(285,040)
499
(112,420)

(179,858)
(5.312)

(185,170)

2020
RM’000

118,234

(125,715)
222

(44,310)

(387)
330
7,748

(9,560)

(40,012)
2,575
886

(2,563)
(92,552)
(974,291)
(313,956)
(145,957)
1,121
(166,005)
662,083
(99,539)
13,270
285,023
829,150

(1,653)
(22,446)

(24,099)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest income on financial assets at FVOCI
Net sale/(purchase) of financial assets at

FVOCI
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of subordinated term loan
Payment for lease liabilities

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and short-term funds

19

Note

5

2021
RM’000

(848)
44,468

119,603

163,223

387,137
(2,078)

385,059

363,112

1,072,884

1,435,996

1,435,996

2020
RM’000

(1,522)
37,151

(368,113)

(332,484)

(2,169)

(2,169)

(358,752)

1,431,636

1,072,884

1,072,884
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities as following

As at
01.01.2021
RM’000

Lease 4,913

As at
01.01.2021
RM’'000

Subordinated
term loan

As at
01.01.2020
RM’000

Lease 7,428

Net Cash
Flows from
Financing Lease
Activities maodification
RM'000 RM'000
(2,078) (462)
Net Cash
Flows from Foreign
Financing exchange
Activities movement
RM’000 RM’'000
387,137
Net Cash
Flows from
Financing Lease
Activities modification
RM’'000 RM’000
(2,169) (520)

Non-cash chanaes

Interest As at
Expense 31.12.2021
RM’'000 RM’000
114 2,487

Nonn-cash chanaoes

Accrued As at
interest 31.12.2021
RM’'000 RM’000

498 387,635

Non-cash chanaes

Interest As at
Expense 31.12.2020
RM’000 RM'000
174 4,913

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Bank is a limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.

The principal activities of the Bank are banking related financial services and Islamic banking
business.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Bank during
the financial year.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Bank is located at Level 48A, Vista Tower,
The Intermark, 348 Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

The financial statements of the Bank have been authorised by the Board of Directors for issuance
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 8 June 2022.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards (‘MFRS’), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, unless otherwise
indicated in this summary of accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. It also requires Directors to exercise
their judgement in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. Although these estimates
and judgement are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results may differ. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective and
applicable to the Bank

The Bank has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2021:

Amendments to MFRS16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions”
Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139 and MFRS 7, MFRS 4 and MFRS 16 “Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase2”

The adoption of these amendments to published standards did not have any material impact
on the financial statements of the Bank. The Bank did not have to change its accounting
policies or make retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting the amendments to
published standards.

The nature of the new amendments to published standards relevant to the Bank are
described below:

(i) VID-19 ‘Related Rent Concessions’

On adoption of the MFRS 16 amendment, the Bank is not required to assess whether
a rent concession for payments due on or before 30 June 2021 that occurs as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and meets specified conditions is a lease
modification.

The Bank accounts for such COVID-19 related rent concessions as a variable lease
payment occurs.

In accordance with transitional provisions provided in the MFRS 16 amendment, the
comparative information for December 2020 was not restated and continued to be
reported under the previous accounting policies in accordance with the lease
modification principles in MFRS 16. The cumulative effects or initially applying the
MFRS 16 amendment were adjusted against retained earnings as at 1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(i

(continued)

S 4 and MFRS 16 “Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase?2”

The Phase 1 amendments, which were effective on 1 January 2020, provided
temporary reliefs from applying specific hedge accounting requirements to
relationships affected by uncertainties arising as a result of interbank offered rate
(“IBOR”) reform.

The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of
thereforms, including the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one. The
Phase 2 amendments provide practical expedient allowing entities to update the
effective interest rate (for instruments measured at amortised cost and lessee to
account for any required changes in contractual cash flows that is a direct
consequence of IBOR reform. This results in no immediate gain or loss recognised in
the income statements.

The Phase 2 amendments require entities to update the hedge documentation to
reflect the changes required by the IBOR replacement. These amendments also
provide reliefs that enable and require entities to continue hedge accounting in
circumstances when changes in hedged items and hedging instruments are solely
due to IBOR reform.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective
for financial year beginning or after 1 January 2022. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the financial statements of the Bank.

()

(ii)

(iii)

It clarifies that only fees paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including the fees paid or received on each other’s behalf, are included in the cash
flow of the new loan when performing the 10% test.

The Bank shall apply the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
Bank first applies the amendments.

Amendments to MFRS 16 ‘Proceeds before intende

2022)

It prohibits the Bank from deducting from the cost of a property, plant and equipment
the proceeds received from selling items produced by the property, plant and
equipment before it is ready for its intended use. The sales proceeds should instead
be recognized in profit or loss.

The amendments also clarify that testing whether an asset is functioning properly
refers to assessing the technical and physical performance of the property, plant
and equipment.

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively.
RS 137 ‘Onerous contract

The amendments explain that the direct cost of fulfilling a contract for the purpose
of determining the unavoidable costs of meeting the Bank’s contractual obligations
comprises the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(e.g an allocation of the depreciation charge for an asset used to fulfill the contract).
The amendments also clarify that, before a separate provision for an onerous
contract is established, the Bank recognizes any impairment loss that has occurred
on assets used in fulfilling the contract, rather than on assets dedicated to that
contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) etations that have been issued but

(continued)

(iv) Amendments to MFRS 101 ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non-current’

It clarifies that a liability is classified as non-current if the Bank has a substantive right
at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. If the right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the Bank
complying with specified conditions (e.g debt covenants), the right exists at the end of
the reporting period only if the Bank complies with those conditions at that date. The
amendments further clarify that the entity must comply with the conditions at the end of
the reporting period even if the lender does not test compliance until a later date.

The assessment of whether the Bank has the right to defer settlement of a liability at the
reporting date is not affected by expectations of the Bank or events after the reporting

date.

The amendments shall be applied retrospectively and is not expected to result in any
impact as the Bank presents all assets and liabilities in the statements of financial

position in order of liquidity.

(v) Amendments to MFRS 112 ‘Deferred Tax related to Ass

It clarifies that the initial exemption rule does not apply to transactions where both an
asset and a liability are recognised at the same time such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Accordingly, the Bank is required to recognise both
deferred tax assets and liabilities for all deductible and taxable temporary differences

arising from such transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

Financial assets

The Bank initially recognises financial assets measured at amortised cost on the date that
they are originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss) are recognised initially on the settlement date, which is the date that the Bank
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the rights fo receive the contractual cash flows on the financial
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the Bank is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss which are initially measured at
fair value.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (‘(FVOCI’):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss (‘FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Bank may make the following irrevocable election/designation at
initial recognition of a financial asset:

the Bank may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and

the Bank may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost
or FVOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate (‘EIR’), transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest
rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit
losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured
at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments
measured subsequently at amortised cost and at FVOCI. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods,
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Bank recognises interest
income by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from initial recognition. The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even
if the credit risk of the financial asset subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss.

Term placements with banks and other financial institutions, term placements due from BNP
Paribas related entities, loans to customers and other receivables consists of financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

Debt instruments classified as FVOCI

Debt instruments recorded as investment securities are classified as FVOCI. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 32 fair value of financial assets and liabilities.
The debt instruments classified as FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of these debt instruments classified as
FVOCI as a result of foreign exchange gains and losses, impairment gains or losses, and
interest income calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would
have been recognised in profit or loss if these debt instruments classified as FVOCI had been
measured at amortised cost. All other changes in the carrying amount of these debt
instruments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of “Revaluation reserves”. When these debt instruments
classified as FVOCI are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value t

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

° investments in equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, unless the Bank
designates an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as FVOCI on initial recognition.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVOCI criteria
are classified as FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised
cost criteria or the FVOCI criteria may be designated as FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Bank has not
designated any debt instruments as FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value as at each reporting date, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Interest income
and Other operating income’ line. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
32 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A Financial assets (continued)

Securities temporarily acquired under reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised
in the Bank’s statement of financial position. The corresponding receivable is recognised in
the appropriate asset category on the statement of financial position except in the case of
reverse repurchase agreements contracted for trading purposes, where the corresponding
receivable is recognised under “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate as at each reporting date.
Specifically,

for financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘Other operating income’ line item;

for debt instruments measured at FVOCI that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are
recognised in profit or loss in the “Other operating income” line item; and

for financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging

relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other
operating’ line item.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)

The Bank recognises a loss allowance for expected credit iosses (‘ECL’) on investments in
debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as well as on loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. No impairment loss is recognised for
investments in equity instruments. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

With the exception of Purchased or originated credit-impaired (‘POC’) financial assets
(which are considered separately below), ECL are required to be measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to:

12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (referred to
as Stage 1); or

e full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the
life of the financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other
financial instruments, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

ECL represent a probability-weighted estimate of the difference between present value of
cash flows according to contract and present value of cash flows the Bank expect to receive,
over the remaining life of the financial instrument. For financial contracts, the ECL is the
difference between the expected payments to reimburse the holder of the guaranteed debt
instrument less any amounts that the Bank expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or
any other party.

The measurement of ECL reflects:

any unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes;

the time value of money; and

reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)
(continued)

The Bank measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of
loans that share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss
allowance is based on the present value of the asset’s expected cash flows using the asset's
original EIR, regardless of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a collective basis.

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired
financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
° a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties;
or

the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event—instead, the combined effect of
several events may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Bank
assesses whether debt instruments that are financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI are credit-impaired at each reporting date. To assess if sovereign and corporate debt
instruments are credit impaired, the Bank considers factors such as bond yields, credit
ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a
deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result
of granting the concession the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assets where
concessions are contemplated but not granted the asset is deemed credit impaired when
there is observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of default.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)
Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is
used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss
allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability
of default (‘PD’) which affects both the measurement of ECL and the identification of a

significant increase in credit risk.
The Bank considers the following as constituting an event of default

e the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the
Bank; or

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full.

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different
types of assets.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Bank takes into
account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on
the type of the asset, for example in corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is the
breach of covenants. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on
another obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The Bank uses
a variety of sources of information to assess default, which are either developed internally
or obtained from external sources.

The Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk the Bank will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than
12-month ECL.

The Bank’s accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient that financial assets with
‘low’ credit risk at the reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in
credit risk. As a result, the Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts that are subject to impairment for significant increase in credit
risk.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Financial assets (continued)
(continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Bank compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the
risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current
reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognised. In making this
assessment, the Bank considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort, based on the Bank’s historical experience and
expert credit assessment including forward-looking information.

Multiple economic scenarios form the basis of determining the probability of default at initial
recognition and at subsequent reporting dates. Different economic scenarios will lead to a
different probability of default. It is the weighting of these different scenarios that forms the
basis of a weighted average probability of default that is used to determine whether credit
risk has significantly increased.

Forward-looking information includes the future prospects of the industries in which the
Bank’s counterparties operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various internal and external sources of actual and forecast economic
information. The Bank allocates its counterparties to a relevant internal credit risk grade
depending on their credit quality. The quantitative information is a primary indicator of
significant increase in credit risk and is based on the change in lifetime PD by comparing:

the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date; with

the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated based on facts
and circumstances at the time of initial recognition of the exposure.

The PDs used are forward looking and the Bank uses the same methodologies and data
used to measure the loss allowance for ECL.

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase in credit risk are reflected in PD
models on a timely basis. However, the Bank still considers separately some qualitative
factors to assess if credit risk has increased significantly. There is particular focus on assets
that are included on a “watch list” given an exposure is on a watch list once there is a concern
that the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriorated.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure,

a given change, in absolute terms, in the PD will be more significant for a financial instrument
with a lower initial PD than compared to a financial instrument with a higher PD.
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A

Financial assets (continued)

(continued)

As a back-stop when an asset becomes 30 days past due, the Bank considers that a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment
model, i.e. the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Bank has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when
the Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. The Bank may apply enforcement activities to financial
assets written off.

Recoveries resulting from the Bank’s enforcement activities will result in impairment credit.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the “other operating income” line in the statement of
comprehensive income.

However, for non-derivative financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is recognised in OCI, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised
in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to
retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability.
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B

Financial liabilities (continued)

For issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are designated as at
FVTPL all gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

In making the determination of whether recognising changes in the liability’s credit risk in
OCI will create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank assesses
whether it expects that the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk will be offset in profit
or loss by a change in the fair value of another financial instrument measured at FVTPL.
This determination is made at initial recognition.

Securities temporarily sold under repurchase agreements continue to be recorded in the
Bank’s statement of financial position in the category of securities to which they belong. The
corresponding liability is recognised in the appropriate debt category on the statement of
financial position except in the case of repurchase agreements contracted for trading
purposes where the corresponding liability is classified under “Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss”.

Other financial liabilities

Deposits of non-bank customers, deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions, trade and other payables, other liabilities, and subordinated term loan are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, with interest expense recognised
on an effective yield basis.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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Cc

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of any derivatives that do not qualify
for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive
income.

The best evidence of fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price
(i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of the
instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions
in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable markets. When such evidence
exists, the Bank recognises the fair value of derivatives in statement of comprehensive
income immediately.

The Bank designate certain derivatives to manage its exposure to foreign currency and
interest rate risks. The instruments used included interest rate swap, and cross currency
interest rate swap. The Bank documents at the inception of the hedging transaction, the risk
management objective & strategy and the economic relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items including whether the hedging instrument is expected to
offset changes in cash flows of hedged items.

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk
management objective remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge
accounting, the hedge relationship will be rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the
hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio aligns with the
ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated and
accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income at the time of the hedge
relationship rebalancing.

(a) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value
hedges are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to profit or loss over the period to maturity using a recalculated effective
interest rate.
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Cc

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
(b) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves within equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income within
‘gain/(loss) on derivatives trading’.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity
is immediately transferred to the statement of comprehensive income.

Recognition of interest/profit income and interest/profit expense

Interest/profit income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are
recognised within “interest/profit income” and “interest/profit expense’ in the profit or loss
using the effective interest/profit method.

The effective interest/profit method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest/profit income or
interest/profit expense over the relevant period. The effective interest/profit rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected
life of the financial instruments or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest/profit rate, the Bank takes into account all contractual terms of the financial
instrument and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest/profit rate, but not future credit
losses.

Interest/profit on impaired financial assets is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

Income from Islamic banking business is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with
the principles of Shariah.
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E

Recognition of revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised by reference to each distinct performance obligation promised in the
contract with customer when or as the Bank transfer the control of the goods or services
promised in a contract and the customer obtains control of the goods and services.
Depending on the substance of the respective contract with customer, the control of the
promised goods or services may transfer over time or at point in time.

A contract with customer exists when the contract has commercial substance, the Bank and
customer have approved the contract and intend to perform their respective obligations, the
Bank’s and the customer's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred and the
payment terms can be identified, and it is probable that the Bank will coliect the
consideration to which it will be entitled to in exchange of those goods or services.

At the inception of each contract with customer, the Bank assess the contract to identify
distinct performance obligations, being the units of account that determine when and how
revenue from the contract with customer is recognised.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration to which the Bank expect to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the customers, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. If the amount of consideration varies, the Bank
estimate the amount of consideration that it expects to be entitled based on the expected
value or the most likely outcome but the estimation is constrained up to the amount that is
highly probable of no significant reversal in the future. If the contract with customer contains
more than one distinct performance obligation, the amount of consideration is allocated to
each distinct performance obligation based on the prices of the goods or services promised
in the contract.

The consideration allocated to each performance obligation is recognised as revenue when
or as the customer obtains control of the goods or services. At the inception of each contract
with customer, the Bank determine whether control of the goods or services for each
performance obligation is transferred over time or at a point in time. Revenue is recognised
over time if the control over the goods or services are transferred over time. Revenue for
performance obligation that is not satisfied over time is recognised at the point in time at
which the customer obtains control of the promised goods or services.

39



istration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E

Recognition of revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
The following specific recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognised:
Fee and commission income

The Bank earn fee and commission income from a diverse range of services provided to
their customers. Fee income can be divided into the following categories:

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period
by reference to the stage of completion of the services. These fees include loan
arrangement, commission income and advisory fees. Loan commitments fees for loans that
are unlikely to be drawn down are recognised over the commitment period on a straight-line
basis.

Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognised after
fulfilling the corresponding criteria.

Fee from such activities can only be determined at the end of the transaction in view of the
fact that the final consideration is subject a wide range of variables such as market price
fluctuation, demand / supply etc.
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F

Currency translation

The financial statements of the Bank are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM’), which is also the Bank’s functional
currency. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RM'000) except where otherwise
indicated.

The methods used to account for assets and liabilities relating to foreign currency
transactions entered into by the Bank, and to measure the foreign exchange risk arising on
such transactions, depend on whether the asset or liability in question is classified as a
monetary or a non-monetary item.

Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency of the Bank at the closing rate. Translation differences are recognised
in profit or loss, except for those arising from financial instruments designated as a cash
flow hedge or a net investment hedge, which are recognised in shareholder's equity.

Non-monetary assets may be measured either at historical cost or at fair value. Non-
monetary assets expressed in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction if they are measured at historical cost, and at the closing rate if
they are measured at fair value.

Translation differences on non-monetary assets expressed in foreign currencies and
measured at fair value (variable-income securities) are recognised in profit and loss if the
asset is classified under “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”, and in
shareholders’ equity if the asset is classified under “Available-for-sale financial assets”,
unless the financial asset in question is designated as an item hedged against foreign
exchange risk in a fair value hedging relationship, in which case the translation difference is
recognised in profit or loss.
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G

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets shown on the statement of financial
position comprise assets used in operations. Assets used in operations are those used in
the provision of services or for administrative purposes, and include non-property assets
leased by the Bank as lessor under operating leases.

Software developed internally by the Bank that fulfils the criteria for capitalisation is
capitalised at direct development cost, which includes external costs and the labour costs
of employees directly attributable to the project.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation and any impairment losses.

The depreciable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is calculated
after deducting the residual value of the asset. Only assets leased by the Bank as lessor
under operating leases are presumed to have a residual value, as the useful life of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets used in operations is generally the same as their
economic life.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated or amortised using the
straightline method over the useful life of the asset. Depreciation and amortisation expense
is recognised in profit or loss. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life shall not be
amortised.

Renovation work-in-progress is not depreciated until they have been completed and ready
for commercial operation.

Where an asset consists of a number of components that may require replacement at
regular intervals, or that have different uses or different patterns of consumption of economic
benefits, each component is recognised separately and depreciated using a method
appropriate to that component.
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G

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (continued)

The depreciation is made at the following rates:

Office equipment 20%
Renovation and installation 16.67%
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 20%
Computer equipment and hardware 20% - 33.33%

Software maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. However, expenditure that is regarded
as upgrading the software or extending its useful life is included in the initial acquisition or
production cost.

Depreciable property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for impairment
if there is an indication of potential impairment at the end of the reporting period. Non-
depreciable assets are tested for impairment at least annually, using the same method as
for goodwill allocated to cash-generating units.

If there is an indication of impairment, the new recoverable amount of the asset is compared
with the carrying amount. If the asset is found to be impaired, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss. This loss is reversed in the event of a change in the estimated
recoverable amount or if there is no longer an indication of impairment. Impairment losses
are taken to profit or loss.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets used
in operations are recognised in profit or loss.
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H

Employee benefits

(a)

(c)

(d)

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees
of the Bank. Short-term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual
leave are recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their
entitlement to future compensated absences, and short-term non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences
occur.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Bank
pays fixed contributions into separate entities or funds and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if any of the funds do not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the
current and preceding financial years. Such contributions are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred. As required by law, companies in Malaysia
make such contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”).

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a resullt
of services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

BNP Paribas has set out share-based payment compensation for certain
employees, including stock option and share award plans implemented as part of
loyalty schemes and a Global Share-based Incentive Plan. As part of the BNP
Paribas Group’s variable remuneration policy, certain high-performing and newly
recruited employees are offered a loyalty bonus scheme, entitling them to specific
share-based remuneration, payable over the several years, and subject to the
condition that the employees remain within the BNP Paribas Group.

Under MFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, the Bank makes a charge to profit or loss

in connection with expenses relating to share-based payments from grant date to
vesting date.
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Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds in the statement of financial position comprise of cash and bank
balances with banks and other financial institutions and short-term deposits maturing within
one month.

Current and deferred tax

Current tax expense is determined according to the Malaysian tax laws and includes all
taxes based upon the taxable profits.

Deferred tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the amount attributed to assets and liabilities for tax purposes and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and
loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities,
which are charged or credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity
and is subsequently recognised in profit or loss together with the deferred gain or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the asset is realised or the liabilities settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Bank intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Leases

Leases are recognised as right-of-use (‘ROU’) asset and a corresponding liability at the date
on which the leased asset is available for use by the Bank.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Bank allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. The Bank does not separate lease and non-lease components. Both
components are accounted for as a single lease component and payments for both
components are included in the measurement of lease liability.
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L Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The Bank has applied the the foliowing Phase 1 reliefs provided by the Amendments to
MFRS 139 and MFRS 7 ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’ until the uncertainty arising from
IBOR reform no longer being present:

When considering the ‘highly probable’ requirement, the Bank has assumed that the
IBOR interest rate on which the Bank's hedged borrowings is based does not change
as a result of IBOR reform.

in assessing whether the hedge is expected to be highly effective on a forward-looking
basis the Bank has assumed that the IBOR interest rate on which the cash flows of
the hedged borrowings and the cross currency interest rate swap that hedges it are
based is not altered by IBOR reform.

The Bank has not recycled the cash flow hedge reserve for designated hedges that
are subject to the IBOR reform.

Hedge accounting is not discontinued when the retrospective hedge effectiveness test
for a hedging relationship falls outside the required 80-125% range as a result of the
IBOR reform.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Preparation of the financial statements involves making judgements, assumptions and estimates
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, the following significant judgements,
estimates and assumptions made by the management:

the measurement of expected credit losses. This applies in particular to the assessment of
significant increase in credit risk, the models and assumptions used to measure expected
credit losses, the determination of the different economic scenarios and their weighting. The
detailed judgements, assumptions and estimates made are disclosed in Note 3A;

° the use of internally-developed models to measure positions in financial instruments that are
not quoted in active markets the detailed judgements, assumptions and estimates are
disclosed in Note 32;
calculations of the fair value of unquoted financial instruments classified in “Financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income”, or in “Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss”, whether as assets or liabilities, and more generally calculations of the
fair value of financial instruments subject to a fair value disclosure requirement.
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CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’'000

At amortised cost:
Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions 95,062 29,608
Money at call and deposit placements maturing within one month 1,340,934 1,043,276
1,435,996 1,072,884

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (‘FVTPL)

2021 2020
RM’000 RM'000
At Fair Value:
Government securities:
Malaysian Government Securities 227,080 381,477
Malaysian Government Investment Issues 217,342 32,490
444 422 413,967

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (‘FVOCI’)

2021 2020
RM'000 RM’000
At Fair Value:

Government securities:
Malaysian Government Securities 133,642 311,624
Malaysian Government Investment Issues 432,069 422,248
Bank Negara Malaysia Debt Securities 626,190 601,359
1,191,901 1,335,231
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
At Amortised Cost
(M) By type
Revolving credit 519,699 827,750
Term loans 627,039 376,129
Trust receipts 4,910 10,330
Overdrafts 20,959 7,544
Factoring receivables 131,849 121,550
Gross loans, advances and financing” 1,304,456 1,343,303
Less: Expected Credit Losses (‘ECL’) (2,571) (4,896)
Net loans, advances and financing 1,301,885 1,338,407

Note # Included in the loans, funding extended to BNP Paribas Najmah (an Islamic
Banking window in the Bank) under Profit Sharing investment Account (PSIA)
amounting to RM30.02 million (FY2020: RM nil). The PSIA is a contract based on
the Wakalah principle.

(ii) By type of customer

Domestic business enterprises 1,274,434 1,323,534
Domestic non-bank financial institutions 30,022
Financial institutions 19,769
1,304,456 1,343,303
(iii) By interest rate

Variable rate:

Cost plus 1,286,409 1,343,303
Fixed rate 18,047
1,304,456 1,343,303

(iv) By residual contractual maturity

Maturing within one year 830,755 1,015,886
More than one year to five years 252,332 211,467
More than five years 221,369 115,950

1,304,456 1,343,303
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

2021 2020
RM000 RM’000
(i) By geographical distribution
In Malaysia 1,304,456 1,343,303
(i) By Sector
Manufacturing 663,410 940,551
Mining and quarrying 12,782 36,157
Construction 2,000 3,000
Wholesale and retail 139,673 135,956
Financial services 30,022 19,769
Electricity, gas and water 221,369 115,950
Transport, storage and communication 153,338
Other business services 73,853 82,530
Real estate activities 8,009 9,390
1,304,456 1,343,303
iii) Movements in ECL on loans, advances and financing are as follows:

12 Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Staae 2) (Stage 3) Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM'000
2021
Balance at beginning of financial year 2,310 2,586 4,896
Change in credit risk (14) 14
Allowance made/(written-back)
during the financial year (110) (1,382) (1,492)
Derecognised during the financial
year (798) (35) (833)
Balance at end of financial year 1,388 1,183 2,571
2021
Loss allowance for non-credit-impaired exposures and
regulatory reserves of no less than 1% to total credit
exposures, net of loss allowance for credit-impaired exposures 1%
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(iii) Movements in ECL on loans, advances and financing are as follows:

12 Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
RM'000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000
2020
Balance at beginning of financial year 1,168 4,603 5,771
Change in credit risk 49 (49)
Allowance made/(written-back)
during the financial year 1,301 2,430 3,731
Derecognised during the financial
year (208) (4,398) )
Balance at end of financial year 2,310 2,586
2020
Loss allowance for non-credit-impaired exposures and
regulatory reserves of no less than 1% to total credit
exposures, net of loss allowance for credit-impaired exposures 0.3%

BNM Guidelines on Financial Reporting/Financial Reporting for Islamic Banking Institutions requires
banking institutions to maintain in aggregate, loss allowance for non credit-impaired exposures and
regulatory reserve of no less than 1% of total credit exposures, net of loss allowance for credit-impaired
exposures.

In 2020, the regulatory reserve held against expected losses is reduced to 0%, a COVID-19 related
measure to drawdown prudential buffers as permitted by BNM.
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING (CONTINUED)

(iv) Movements on loans, advances and financing are as follows

2021

Balance at beginning of financial year

Change in credit risk

Purchases and origination

Derecognised during the financial
year

Balance at end of financial year

2020

Balance at beginning of financial year

Change in credit risk

Purchases and origination

Derecognised during the financial
year

Balance at end of financial year

1,240,718

12 Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

month not credit credit

ECL impaired impaired

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)

RM'000 RM’'000 RM’000
1,240,718 102,585
(2,000) 2,000
480,178 501
(497,186) (22,340)
1,221,710 82,746

12 Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

month not credit credit

ECL impaired impaired

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)

RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
1,061,318 134,340
(27,007) 27,007
517,175 51,565
(310,768) (110,327)
102,585
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Total
RM’000

1,343,303

480,679
(519,526)

1,304,456

Total
RM’'000

1,195,658

568,740
(421,095)

1,343,303



istration No
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES

Derivative financial instruments are financial instruments whose values change in response to
changes in prices or rates (such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and security prices) of the
underlying instruments. These instruments allow the Bank to transfer, modify or reduce its foreign
exchange and interest rate risks via hedge relationships. Most of the Bank’s derivative trading
activities relate to deals with customers which are normally laid off with counterparties.

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank has positions in the following types of derivatives:

2021
Notional Assets Liabilities
RM'000 RM’'000 RM'000
Foreign exchange derivatives:
Currency forwards 25,924,437 118,227 (124,255)
Currency swaps 34,731,442 139,585 (192,551)
Currency options 96 (1)
Currency spot 59,480 30 1)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 43,946,080 357,128 (153,756)
Bond forwards 160,000 80,566 (80,566)
Cap and floor 387,137 500
Credit derivatives:
Credit default swaps 507,842 10,633 (1,600)
Total derivative assets/(liabilities) 105,716,514 706,669 (552,740)
2020
Notional Assets Liabilities
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Foreign exchange derivatives:
Currency forwards 16,227,549 300,124 (172,439)
Currency swaps 33,427,520 452,036 (664,537)
Currency options 428,929 7,018 (78)
Currency spot 561,607 1,724 (300)
Interest rate derivatives:
Interest rate swaps 45,894,726 505,655 (255,512)
Credit derivatives:
Credit default swaps 911,204 29,736 (18,307)
Total derivative assets/(liabilities) 97,451,535 1,296,293 (1,111,173)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The table shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments, recorded as assets or fiabilities,
together with their notional amounts. The notional amount, recorded at gross, is the basis upon
which changes in the value of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume
of transactions outstanding at the end of the reporting period and are indicative of neither the market
risk nor the credit risk.

The fair values of the Bank’s derivative financial instruments are estimated by reference to quoted
market prices, where available. Internal models are used when no market prices are available.

Fair value hedges are used by the Bank for protection against the changes in fair value of financial
assets and financial liabilities due to movement of market interest rates. The Bank use cross currency
swaps and interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate risk of financial assets measured at
FVOCIL.

At the inception of the hedge, the Bank prepares formal documentation which details the hedging
relationship, identifying the instrument, or portion of the instrument, or portion of risk that is being
hedged, the hedging strategy and the type of risk hedged, the hedging instrument, and the methods
used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The Bank will perform assessment by
comparing the changes in fair value of the hedge to changes in the fair value of the derivative.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks, such as credit risk, are managed
but not hedged by the Bank. The interest rate risk component is determined as the changes in fair
value of long term fixed rate financial investment (e.g.bonds, loans, advances and financing) arising
from changes in benchmarks rates such as 3-month KLIBOR, 3-month USD LIBOR, and 6-month USD
LIBOR. Such changes are usually the largest component of the overall change in fair value. This
strategy is designated as a fair value hedge and its effectiveness is assessed with reference to the
effectiveness requirements as set out in MFRS9, which include demonstrating economic relationship,
assessing the effect of credit risk and calculating hedge ratio.

The Bank establish the hedge ratio by aligning the principal amount of the hedged instrument to the
extent of its hedged item. The Bank have identified the following possible sources of ineffectiveness:

Counterparty credit risk which impact the fair value of the interest rate swaps but not the hedged
items; and

Mismatches in terms of the hedged items and hedging instruments such as voluntary
discontinuance, maturity date and disposal of hedged item.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(continued)

The table below summarises the derivatives financial instruments entered by the Bank which are all
used as hedging instruments in fair value hedges:

2021
Notional Assets Liabilities
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000

Foreign exchange and interest rate derivatives:
Interest rate swaps 4,907,271 97,624 (13 16
Cross Currency swaps 777,045 1,405 (3,938

The following table sets out the maturity profile and average price of the hedging instrument used in fair
value hedge:
Nominal Average fixed
amount interest rate

2021 RM'000 %
Up to one year 1,223,200 3.37
One to five years 3,080,000 3.37
More than 5 years 604,071 4.30
Up to one year 419,125

One to five years 357,920 2.98

More than 5 years

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and hedge ineffectiveness are as
follows:

Nominal
Hedge amount
ineffectiveness directly
recognised impacted
In income by IBOR
Notional Assets Liabilities statement reform
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM000
2021
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate swap 4,907,271 97,624 (13,116) (1) 4,907,271
Cross currency
swap 777,045 1,405 (3,938) 32 777,045

* The hedging instrument is included in the derivative asset and derivative liabilities line item in the
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items are as follows:

Fair Value
Hedge
RM’000 RM’000
2021
Financial assets at FVOCI 133,684 4,771

The Bank's cash flow hedges principally consist of cross currency interest rate swap that is used to
protect against exposures to variability in future interest cash flows on interest incurring liabilities. The
amount and timing of the interest cash flows, are projected on the basis of their contractual terms and
other relevant factors, including estimates of renewal of interest incurring liabilities.

The aggregate projected interest cash flows over time form the basis for identifying gains and losses
on the effective portions of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges to forecast transactions. Gains
and losses are initially recognised directly in equity, in the cash flow hedge reserve, and are transferred
to statement of comprehensive income when the forecast cash flows affect the statement of
comprehensive income. The hedging relationship was highly effective for the total hedging period and

as of the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(continued)

The table below summarises the derivatives financial instruments entered by the Bank which is all
used as hedging instrument in cash flow hedge:

2021
Nominal Assets Liabilities
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Foreign exchange derivatives
Cross currency swaps 408,171 (21,434)

Nominal Average fixed
amount interest rate
021 RM’000 %

Up to one year
One to five years 408,171
More than 5 years

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and hedge ineffectiveness are as
follows:

Nominal
Hedge Amount
ineffectiveness directly
recognised impacted
in income by IBOR
Notional Assets Liabilities Statement Reform
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
2021
Foreign
Cross currency
swap 408,171 (21,434) 1,730 408,171

The amount relating to item designated as hedged item is a subordinated term loan disclosed in Note
17.
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OTHER ASSETS
2021 2020
RM’'000 RM'000
Collateral assets 62,008 184,563
Other receivables 6,959 8,631
Deposit 812 812
Prepayments 786 1,071
70,565 195,077

Collateral assets represent cash collateral pledged to other banks and financial institutions for
derivative transactions.

57



(zov)
(s1)
L8

G18'92

000N
el

(zov)

(s1)

9
16€'CL Gl
000.NY 000N 000.NY
asn ssalboid ETRIVELY
Jo b1y ul-sjiom Jojopy

uoneAousy

8G

18

v16°L

000.NY
alempiey

pue
juswdinba
Joindwo)

4
GG8°L 96e'y 8.¢
000.Nd 000.NH 000.Nd
sbumy uonejeisu;  AJsuiydoew
pue pue pue
SaJN)X1} uonjeaouay  awdinba
aJnyuin 30O

Jeak Jo pus 1y

uonedIPOW 9ses
HO-8JUIAN
suonppy

JeaA jo Bujuuibaq 1y
1800
Lcoe

INININDI ANV INV1d ‘ALd3d0O¥d

(@3NNILNOD) L20z Y3GNT03A Le AIANT YYIA TVIONVYNIL IHL HOH
SINIW3LVLS TVIONVNI4 3HL OL S31ON

(eisAejey ul pajelodioou))

AvHY39 VISAVIVIN SYaidvd dNg

(1-160816) 891¥€0L0010Z
‘ON

L



8.1

L0¥°ce

(s1)
6eL'e
€8Z°61

000NN
fejlol

28€'C

€65'6

186°L
LG,

000.NY
asn

joybry

000.NH
§s91601d

ul-yiom
uoleAouay

(s1)

Sl

000.Nd
92IyaA
10J0

6S

5022

¥25°9

LLO'L
€16°G

000N
alempiey

pue
juawdinbe
Jondwo)

67

908l

18
STAM!

000.NA
sbumiy

pue
saInyxiy
ainyuing

8¢

8zZ'y

8¢
002y

000.NH
uoiejelsul
pue
uoljeaouay

601

S6¢

A%
8G¢

000.NY
Asugoew
pue
yawdinba
a0VYO

1202 Joquiaoaq Lg Jo sy
anjeA yoog 19N

Jeah jo pua )y

Ho-3jlIM

1eak ay) Joy abieyn
Jeah jo Buluuibaq 1y
uoneldsidsp
paje|nwinooy

120c

(@3NNILNOD) INIWCINDT ANV INV1d ‘ALY3dOdd

(@ANNILNOD) 120z Y3AINIOAA L€ GIANT HVY3IA TVIONYNIL IHL HOH
SIN3IW3LVLS TVIONVNI4 3HL OL S310N

(eisAejey ul pajesodiooul)

advHd39 VISAVIVIN Svaldvd dNg

(1-160816) 891¥£0L00L0Z
ON uoljeJ)s|

W



G1892

(¥€8)

zes'L

121'92

000.Nd
[ejoL

16£'C!

(¥€8)

lez'el

000.Nd
asn

Jo 1ybiy

(cog)
1l

8¢¢

000.Nd
ssaiboid

UI-)JoM
uoeAoUSY

Sl

Sl

000N
T IIVEEY

JOJON

09

v16°'L 668l
soge

€.€°) 14

9gz'9 1G8°L
000./NA 000.N
alempley sbumi
pue pue
Juswdinba saJnyxy
Jeyndwo) alnyuiny

9se'y 8.¢€
89
962y 0Le
000.Nd 000N
uonejeysul  AJsuiyoew
pue pue
uojjerouay  juswdinbs
L)

Jeak Jo pua )y

uoljedlIpow aseaT
uojjeoyisseloey
suonppy

Jeak jo Buiuuibaq 1y
}s0D
0c0C

(@3NNILNOD) ININJINDI ANY LNV 1d ‘AL¥3d0O¥d

(@3NNILNOD) 120z ¥3GWID3A L€ A3ANT ¥VIA TVIONVNI4 FHL HOd
SIN3IWILVLS TVIONVNI4 JHL OL S310N

(e1sAejepy ul pajelodioou))

AvHd38 VISAVIVIN SYdldvd dNg

(L-160816) 891¥€£010010Z
ON uoneusi

L



zes'L

€826l

98¢
G/SC
zev'al

000N
[ejof

Gz8'y

z.5°2

98¢
9v9°L
0v9°‘s

000.N
as

Joybry

000.NY
Sseiboid

Ul-0Mm
uoljeAcusy

Sl

S1

000.NY
=TRIIETN

JOJON

L9

Lov'e ocl
€16's AN
vl €8
68.'v Zv9’L
000.Nd 000.A
alempiey sbun
pue pue

juswdinba saJnpxy
Jeyndwo) ainyuiny

9s oclL

00Z'y

16 (23

60L'v yXA4

000N 000.AY

uojje|eysuy  ArBuiyoew

pue pue

uoneaousy juswdinba
92O

0202 Joquwavsd LE Jo sy
anjeA oog joN

Jeak Jo pud Iy

uoleoIIpow asea
1eaA ay) Joj abieyn
Jeak jo Bujuuibaq 1y
uoneisaidsp
paje|nunooy

0coc

(@Q3INNILNOD) INTFWINDI ANY LNV1d ‘AL¥3Id0Yd

(G3NNILNOD) 120z ¥AFGNTDIA L€ A3ANT WVIA TVIONVNIZ FHL ¥O4
SINIW3LVLS TVIONVNI4 IHL OL S310N

(eisAejey u pajesodioouy)

advHd39 VISAVIVIN SY8ldvd dNg

(1-160816) 89L¥€0L00L0C
ON

L



No
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2021 2020
RM'000 RM’000
Cost
At 1 January/31 December 3,090 3,090
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 3,066 2,180
Amortisation for the year 24 886
At 31 December 3,090 3,066
Net book value 24

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the statement of
financial position:

2021 2020

RM'000 RM'000

Deferred Tax Assets 4,151 5,486
Deferred Tax Liabilities (555) (2,070)

At 31 December 3,596 3,416

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax
authority.
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istration No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

14. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2021 2020
RM’000 RM'000
At Amortised Cost:
Demand deposits 1,627,014 1,409,123
Fixed deposits 515,411 886,190
Commodity Murabahah 5,507
2,142,425 2,300,820
(i) Maturity structure of fixed deposits and Commodity Murabahah are as follows
2021 2020
RM'000 RM'000
Due within six months 512,650 887,209
Six months to one year 2,708 4,488
One year to three years 53
515,411 891,697
(ii) The deposits are sourced from the following types of customers:
2021 2020
RM'000 RM’'000
Business enterprises 2,117,609 2,278,943
Non-bank financial institutions 24,816 21,877
2,142,425 2,300,820

15. DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS OF BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2021 2020
RM'000 RM’000

At Amortised Cost:
Other financial institutions 416,102 840,883
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OTHER LIABILITIES

2021 2020
RM'000 RM’000
Collateral deposits 1,057,583 1,151,905
Other payables 35,846 50,330
Accruals and charges 15,899 18,692

Allowance for impairment losses on loan commitment
and financial guarantee 220 692
Lease liabilities 2,487 4913
1,112,035 1,226,532

Collateral deposits represent cash collateral pledged from other banks and financial institutions for
derivative transactions.

(i) Allowance for impairment losses on loans commitment and financial guarantee are as follows:

12 Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stace 2) (Staae 3) Total
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2021
Balance at beginning of
financial year 194 498 692
Changes in credit risk (2) 2
Allowance written-back during
the financial year (71) (401) (472)
Balance at end of
financial year 121 99 220
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

() Allowance for impairment losses on loans commitment and financial guarantee are as follows
(continued)

12 Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

month not credit credit
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Staae 2) (Staae 3) Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2020
Balance at beginning of
financial year 244 1,900 2144
Allowance written-back
during the financial year (50) (1,402) (1,452)
Balance at end of
financial year 194 498 692
SUBORDINATED TERM LOAN
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
EUR 82.0 million subordinated term loan 387,635

On 28 July 2021, the Bank issued EUR 82.0 million subordinated term loan bearing a floating interest
rate of 3M EURIBOR + 123 bps per annum. The subordinated term loan is repayable in full on 28 July
2031.

The EUR 82.0 million subordinated term loan qualifies as Tier Il capital under BNM's Basel Il Capital
Adequacy Framework (Capital Components).

BNPPMB has undertaken cash flow hedge on the currency risk of the EUR 82.0 million using cross
currency swaps.
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SHARE CAPITAL
2021 2020
No of Ordinary Shares RM No of Ordinary Shares RM
000 '000 000 000
and fully paid
At 31 December 650,000 650,000 650,000 650,000
RESERVES
2021 2020
RM’000 RM’'000
Non-distributable:
Revaluation reserve-financial investments at
FVOCI (Note a) 1,755 6,554
Regulatory reserve (Note b) 14,369
Hedging reserve (Note c) 893
17,017 6,554

(@)

Revaluation reserve-financial investments at FVOCI

The revaluation reserve-financial investments at FVOCI represent cumulative fair value
changes on financial investments at FVOCI.

Regulatory reserve

BNM Guidelines on Financial Reporting/Financial Reporting for Islamic Banking Institutions
requires banking institutions to maintain in aggregate, loss allowance for non credit-impaired
exposures and regulatory reserve of no less than 1% of total credit exposures, net of loss
allowance for credit-impaired exposures.

In 2020, the regulatory reserve held against expected losses is reduced to 0%, a COVID-19
related measure to drawdown prudential buffers as permitted by BNM.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve are in respect of the effective portion of unrealised fair value gains and
losses on cash flow hedging instruments.

67



20.

21.

22.

on No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

DIVIDEND
2021
RM'000
Proposed but not recognised as a liability
In respect of financial year ended 31 December 2021
Final single tier dividend of 0.113 sen per ordinary share on
650,000,000 735
INTEREST INCOME
2021
RM’000
Loans and advances 30,026
Money at call and deposit placements with
financial institutions 22,410
Financial assets at FVOCI 41,676
Financial assets at FVTPL 35,950
Reverse repurchase agreements 15,986
Other interest income 5,191
161,239
Amortisation of premium less accretion of discount (14,622)
136,617
INTEREST EXPENSE
2021
RM’000
Deposits from customers 16,457
Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions (4,040)
Repurchase agreements 1,143
Lease liabilities 114
Subordinated term loan 1,210
Other interest expense 8,000
22,884
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2020
RM’000

2020
RM'000

41,049
31,650
40,012
25,543
16,719

1,611

156,584
(7,748)

148,836

2020
RM'000

23,331
2,040
493
174
5,140

31,178
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OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Fee income:
Commissions
Guarantee fee

Other fee income;
Advisory fees
Arrangement fees
Other fees

Gain/(loss) arising from sale of:
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial investments at FVOCI

(Loss)/gain on derivatives trading:
Realised
Unrealised

Unrealised loss on revaluation of financial assets:
FVTPL

Net loss arising from hedging activities
Unrealised (loss)/gain on reverse repurchase agreements
Realised gain/(loss) on repurchase agreements
Other income:
Foreign exchange:
Realised gain/(loss)

Unrealised (loss)/gain
Others
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2021
RM’000

216
1,450

104
301
1,593

3,664

(29,394)

32,936
(37,645)
(196)
(2,015)
(348)

313

36,638
(49,732)
7,097

(38,682)

2020
RM'000

142
1,686

797
2,145

4,770

24,096
9,560

(59,818)
125,715

(222)

387

(330)

(55,388)
44,310
9,706

102,786
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2021
RM'000
Personnel costs (Note a) 42,700
Establishment costs (Note b) 18,020
Marketing expenses (Note c¢) 424
Administration and general expenses (Note d) 16,095
77,239
(a) Personnel costs
Salaries, bonuses and allowance 32,095
Defined contribution plan 5,169
Social security cost 141
Other staff related expenses 5,295
42,700
(b) Establishment costs
Information technology costs 7,649
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 11) 3,139
Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 12) 24
Others 7,208
18,020
(c) Marketing expenses
Advertising 56
Others 368
424
(d) Administration and general expenses
Legal and professional fees 1,144
Communication and transportation 920
Other general expenses 14,031
16,095
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2020
RM’000

48,826
16,242

367
39,682

105,117

36,865
5,738
340
5,883

48,826

9,088
2,575

886
3,693

16,242

70
297

367

2,460
950
36,272

39,682
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

Included in the above expenditure are the following statutory disclosures:

2021 2020

RM’000 RM'000

Directors’ remuneration 1,006 179
Auditors’ remuneration:

Statutory audit 396 380

Others 25 140

Details of Directors’ remuneration of the Bank during the year are as follows

Other Benefits
Fees allowances Bonuses in kind Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
2021
Non-executive Directors 1,001 5 1,006
2020
Non-executive Directors 1,177 2 1,179

The details of the Directors of the Bank in office, and interest in shares and share options during the
financial year are disclosed in the Report of the Directors.

Aggregate remuneration of the CEO and all Directors during the financial year is as follows:

2021 2020
RM'000 RM’000
Chief Executive Officer
Anthony Lo 2,342 2,250
Non-Executive Directors*
Dato Abdullah Mat Noh 100 400
Dato’ Mohamed Khadar Bin Merican 274
Halim Haji Din 100
Jean-Pierre Roger Beno Bernard 30 122
Yves Maurice Guy Marie Drieux 116 122
Wahid Ali bin Mohd Khalil 140 136
Chia Seng Leng 76 122
Vijayam a/p Nadarajah 135 134
Faisal bin Ismail 135 43
3,348 3,429

*The remuneration is net of tax.
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25. EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

Expected credit losses:
Allowance written back during the financial year

Loans, advances and financing
Other financial assets

26. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax:
Current year
(Over)/Under provision in prior years

Deferred tax (Note 13)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Recognition and reversal of prior years' temporary
differences

Income tax expenses
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2021
RM'000

(3,032)

(2,594)
(438)

(3,032)

2021
RM’'000

(759)

(759)

907
428
1,335

576

2020
RM’'000

(2,563)

(1,031)
(1,532)

(2,563)

2020
RM’000

30,071
176

30,247

(1,339)
85
(1,254)

28,993
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

A numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to profit before tax at the applicable statutory income

tax rate is as follows:

2021 2020

RM’000 RM'000

Profit before tax 1,312 118,234

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% 315 28,376
Tax effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 592 356

(Over)/Under provision in prior years (759) 176

Recognition and reversal of prior years' temporary differences 428 85

576 28,993

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BNP Paribas S.A., a financial institution incorporated in
France, which is also regarded by the Directors as the immediate and ultimate holding company of
the Bank.

The related parties and their relationship with the Bank, are as follows:

BNP Paribas S.A., Paris

BNP Paribas, Doha

BNP Paribas, Tokyo

BNP Paribas, Canada

BNP Paribas, New York

BNP Paribas, Hong Kong

BNP Paribas, London

BNP Paribas, Abu Dhabi

BNP Paribas, Singapore

BNP Paribas, Geneva

BNP Paribas, Mumbai

BNP Paribas, Fortis

BNP Paribas, Labuan

BNP Paribas Asset Management Malaysia Sdn Bhd
BNP Paribas Asset Management Najmah Malaysia Sdn Bhd
BNP Paribas Capital (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
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Ultimate holding company

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(a) Related party transactions

Significant transactions undertaken by the Bank with related companies which are determined
on a basis negotiated with the said parties are as follows:

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Income:
Other interest 2 8
Fee Income 226 238
Gain on derivatives trading 21,473 24,580
Recharges from intercompany 7,283 5,913
Others operating income 119 200
Expense:
Interest on deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions (4,386) 1,527
Interest on Commodity Murabahah deposits 80 57
Interest on demand deposits 7 31
Interest on fixed deposits 138 128
Interest on repurchase agreements 1,143 493
Interest on subordinated term loan 1,210
Other interest 643 1,934
Other intercompany charges 10,480 33,896
Other staff related expenses 672 621
Information technology costs 5,508 6,275
Other establishment cost 5,970 2,817
Other general expenses 1,350 276
(b) Related party balances
Ultimate
holding Related
company parties
RM’000 RM’000
2021
Assets
Cash and short term funds 9,546 14,148
Derivative financial assets 204,528 15,652
Other assets 4 6,830
214,078 36,630
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Related party balances (continued)

Ultimate
holding Related
company parties
RM’000 RM'000
2021 (continued)
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 26,745
Deposit and placements of banks and other
financial institutions 93,089 260,302
Subordinated term loan 387,636
Derivative financial liabilities 144,597 5,927
Other liabilities 871,993 8,254
1,497,315 301,228
2020
Assets
Cash and short term funds 3,890 3,804
Derivative financial assets 563,018 44,682
Other assets 1
566,908 48,487
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 25,123
Deposit and placements of banks and other
financial institutions 24,245 816,638
Repurchase agreement 285,353
Derivative financial liabilities 184,407 23,174
Other liabilities 995,160 15
1,489,165 864,950
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Bank, either directly or indirectly. The key
management personnel of the Bank include the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Officers of the
Bank.

Compensation of key management personnel:

The remuneration of key management personnel during the year are as follows

2021 2020

RM’000 RM’'000

Salaries and other short term employee benefits 10,091 9,921
Post-employment benefits:

Defined contribution plan 1,247 1,008

11,338 10,929
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No
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Bank has lease commitments in respect of rented premises which are classified as operating
lease as at 31 December 2018. Starting 1 January 2019, the Bank has recognised right of use assets
for these leases, except for leases which are scoped out of MFRS 16. A summary of the lease
commitments, net of sub-lease is as follows:

2021 2020
RM’000 RM'000

Future minimum rental payments:
Not later than 1 year 354 384
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 270 563
624 947

CREDIT TRANSACTIONS AND EXPOSURES WITH CONNECTED PARTIES

2021 2020

RM’'000 RM’000

Outstanding credit exposures with connected parties 296,496 104,327

Total credit exposures 2,450,352 2,773,228
Percentage of outstanding credit exposure to connected

parties as a proportion of total credit exposures 12.10% 3.76%

Percentage of outstanding credit exposures with
connected parties which is non-performing or in default
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incurs certain contingent
liabilities with legal recourse to its customers. No material losses are anticipated as a result of these
transactions. The commitments and contingencies are not secured against the Bank’s assets.

The principal amount of the commitment and contingencies as of 31 December are as follows:

Direct credit substitutes

Short term self liquidating trade related
contingencies

Irrevocable commitments to extend credit:
Maturity up to one year
Maturity more than one year

Total credit related commitment and contingencies

Foreign exchange derivatives:
One year or less
Over one year to five years
Over five years

Interest rate derivatives:
One year or less
Over one year to five years
Over five years

Credit derivatives:
One year or less
Over one year to five years

Total treasury related commitment and contingencies

Total commitment and contingencies
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2021
Principal
amount
RM’000
295,283

723

20,565

316,571

57,925,295
2,216,232
573,928

13,592,483
28,981,380
1,919,354

43,508
464,244

105,716,514

106,033,085

2020
Principal
amount
RM’000
375,527

6,904

353,470

735,901

48,467,361
2,161,244
17,000

13,308,092
31,127,563
1,459,071

290,264
620,940

97,451,535

98,187,436
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Bank has developed and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to identify,
mitigate and monitor risk across the entity which are based on BNP Paribas Group’s policies. These
practices rely on constant communications, judgement and knowledge of products and markets by the
people closest to them, combined with regular oversight by a central risk management group and
senior management.

(a)

(b)

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of incurring a loss due to inadequate or failed internal processes,
or due to external events, whether deliberate, accidental or natural occurrences. Management
of operational risk is based on an analysis of the “cause — event — effect” chain.

Internal processes giving rise to operational risk may involve employees and/or IT systems.
External events include, but are not limited to floods, fire, earthquakes and terrorist attacks.
Credit or market events such as default or fluctuations in value do not fall within the scope of
operational risk.

Operational risk encompasses human resources risks, legal risks, tax risks, information
system risks, misprocessing risks, Shariah non-compliance risks, risks related to published
financial information and the financial implications resulting from reputation and compliance
risks.

The Bank has implemented an Internal Operational Risk Self Assessment system, identifying
areas and probability of risk. The actual occurrence of operational loss is entered into a
Corporate Loss Database and reconciled against the financial statements. The Bank also has
the Operational Risk Assessment Process and a Business Continuity Plan in place.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential that a bank borrower or counterparty will fail to meet its obligations
in accordance with agreed terms. The probability of default and the expected recovery on the
loan or receivable in the event of default are key components of the credit quality assessment.

Counterparty risk is the credit risk embedded in payment or transactions between
counterparties. Those transactions include bilateral contracts such as over-the-counter
derivatives contracts (‘OTC’). The amount of this risk varies over time in line with changing
market parameters which then impacts the replacement value of the relevant transactions or
portfolio.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk (continued)

The Bank’s lending activities are governed by the Bank’s Credit Risk Policy which is subject
to and fully adopts BNP Paribas Group’s Global Credit Policy. The policy is underpinned by
core principles related to compliance with the BNP Paribas Group's ethical standards, clear
definition of roles and responsibilities and thorough analysis of risks. It is rolled down in the
form of specific policies tailored to each type of business or counterparty.

In respect of its lending activities, the Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by
setting limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of
borrowers, and would abide by geographical and industry segments limit as and when defined
at Group or Regional level.

A comprehensive risk monitoring system is organised around Control units, which are
responsible for ensuring that lending commitments comply with the loan approval decision,
that credit risk reporting data are reliable and that risks accepted by the Bank are effectively
monitored. Daily exception reports are produced and various forecasting tools are used to
provide early warnings of potential escalations of credit risks. The various monitoring levels,
which generally reflect the organisation of discretionary lending authorities, are carried out up
to the General Management Doubtful and Watch List Committee, under the supervision of
Risk Function (‘RISK’). This committee examines on a quarterly basis all sensitive or non-
performing loans in excess of a given threshold, for which it reviews and decides on the
strategy towards the client, the rating and Global Recovery Rate (‘GRR’) and examines the
adequacy of the impairment and recovery data based on a recommendation from the business
lines, with RISK concurrence.

As part of the BNP Paribas Group'’s policy, each business line is required to make a monthly
review, together with RISK, of all corporate, bank and sovereign loans in default to determine
the amount of impairment loss, if any, to be recognised, either by reducing the carrying amount
or by recording a provision for impairment, depending on the applicable accounting standards.
The amount of the impairment loss is based on the present value of expected net recoveries,
including from the realisation of collateral. Each and every change in provision must be
examined locally by a committee between Business, Finance and Risk by physical meetings.
Changes in provision exceeding local/regional delegation level are recommended to Head
Office.

In addition, at APAC level, a collective impairment is established while a dedicated local
management committee is also established to provide the necessary oversight.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk (continued)
(continued)

The determination of this collective impairment, known as MFRS 9 provisions, is calculated
on all facilities and results from a two-step approach.

First the facilities have to be allocated to one of the three impairment stages by determining
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether
the facility is defaulted. If that increase did occur, the facility is considered as being in Stage
2. If there was no significant credit risk increase, the facility remains in stage 1.

Second, the collective provisioning of the facility, known as the expected credit loss is
calculated: 12-month expected loss for all facilities in stage 1 and lifetime expected credit loss
for all facilities in stage 2; facilities in stage 3 are covered by specific provisions.

The Bank adopts the BNP Paribas Group’s Corporate Credit Policy which formalises the rating
principles and methodology to be used to qualify and quantify the credit risks of counterparty.
The implementation of this policy contributes to the management, approval and monitoring,
credit delegation, provisioning and pricing policy process and portfolio management of
corporate credit risks within the Bank at counterparty level.

The BNP Paribas Group performs regular back-testing to ensure that the rating system is
appropriate and robust.

Under the rating system, there are 32 notches. 30 (ranging from 1+ to 10-) cover
counterparties that are not in default with credit assessments ranging from ‘excellent’ to ‘very
concerning’, and two relate to counterparties classified as in Doubtful. Confirmation or
amendments to Counterparty Ratings and the Global Recovery Rates applicable to each
transaction of the counterparty are reviewed at inception and at least once a year as part of
the credit approval process or annual credit review, drawing on the combined expertise of
business line staff and Risk representatives, who have the final say. High quality tools have
been developed to support the rating process, including analysis aids and credit scoring
systems.

In addition to selecting individual risks and measuring the related exposure, the Bank follows
a portfolio-based policy designed to diversify risks among borrowers and industries with a
cautious approach to country risk. Concentrations of counterparty risks are closely monitored
at regular intervals.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral or right to call for
collateral when certain exposure thresholds are exceeded, the right to terminate transactions
upon the occurrence of unfavourable events, the right to reset the terms of transactions after
specified time periods or upon the occurrence of unfavourable events, reducing part of its risks
through risk participations and securitisation and entering into netting agreements with
counterparties that permit the Bank to offset receivables and payables with such
counterparties.

Where possible, the Bank takes collateral to mitigate its exposure. Collateral includes cash,
marketable securities, structured products, moveable and immovable properties, trade
receivables, inventory and other physical and financial collateral. The Bank may also take
fixed and floating charges on the assets of borrowers. It has put in place policies governing
eligibility of collateral. Where appropriate, collaterals are revalued periodically depending on
the type of collaterals in order to ensure continued effective coverage.

The Bank generally holds full collaterals against the credit facilities granted under its wealth
management businesses and holds the right to dispose of these collaterals when certain
exposure thresholds are exceeded. Mortgage loan is usually extended to customers who
maintain their liquidity with the Bank and represent an immaterial proportion of the total loan
portfolio of the Bank.

Netting is used by the Bank in order to mitigate counterparty credit risk associated with
derivatives trading. The main instance where netting occurs is in case of trades termination: if
the counterparty defaults, all the trades are terminated at their current market value, and all
the positive and negative market values are summed to obtain a single amount (net) to be
paid to or received from the counterparty. The balance (‘close-out netting’) may be
collateralised with cash, securities or deposits.

The Bank also applies settlement netting in order to mitigate counterparty credit risk in case
of currency-settlements. This corresponds to the netting of all payments and receipts between
the Bank and one counterparty in the same currency to be settled in the same day. The netting
results in a single amount (for each currency) to be paid either by the Bank or by the
counterparty.

Transactions affected by this are processed in accordance with bilateral or multilateral
agreements respecting the general principles of the national or international framework. The
main forms of bilateral agreements are those issued on an international basis by International
Swaps and Derivatives Association ('ISDA’).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk (continued)

Derivatives

This credit risk exposure is managed at BNP Paribas Group level as part of the overall credit
limits with customers, together with potential exposures from market movements. Collateral
or other security may be obtained to mitigate credit risk exposures on these instruments.

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are probability of default (‘PD’), loss given default
('LGD’) exposure at default (‘EAD’) and effective maturity.

These figures are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other
historical data and they are adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-looking
information.

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. It is estimated as at a
point in time. The calculation is based on statistical rating models, and assessed using rating
tools tailored to the various categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical
models are based on market data (where available), as well as internal data comprising both
quantitative and qualitative factors. PDs are estimated considering the contractual maturities
of exposures and estimated prepayment rates. The estimation is based on current conditions,
adjusted to take into account estimates of future conditions that will impact PD.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into
account cash flows from any collateral. The LGD models for secured assets consider forecasts
of future collateral valuation taking into account sale discounts, time to realisation of collateral,
cross-collateralisation and seniority of claim, cost of realisation of collateral and cure rates (i.e.
exit from non-performing status). LGD models for unsecured assets consider time of recovery,
recovery rates and seniority of claims. The calculation is on a discounted cash flow basis,
where the cash flows are discounted by the original EIR of the loan.

EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and
interest, and expected drawdowns on committed facilities. The Bank’s modelling approach for
EAD reflects expected changes in the balance outstanding over the lifetime of the loan
exposure that are permitted by the current contractual terms, such as amortisation profiles,
early repayment or overpayment, changes in utilisation of undrawn commitments and credit
mitigation actions taken before default. The Bank uses EAD models that reflect the
characteristics of the portfolios.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk (continued)

The effective maturity is the expected date when the contract with the counterparty expires.

The Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period
(including extension options) over which the entity is exposed to credit risk and not a longer
period, even if contact extension or renewal is common business practice. However, for
financial instruments such as revolving credit facilities and overdraft facilities that include both
a loan and an undrawn commitment component, the Bank’s contractual ability to demand
repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment does not limit the Bank’s exposure to credit
losses to the contractual notice period. For such financial instruments the Bank measures ECL
over the period that it is exposed to credit risk and ECL would not be mitigated by credit risk
management actions, even if that period extends beyond the maximum contractual period.
These financial instruments do not have a fixed term or repayment structure and have a short
contractual cancellation period.

The measurement of ECL is based on probability weighted average credit loss. As a result,
the measurement of the loss allowance should be the same regardless of whether it is
measured on an individual basis or a coliective basis (although measurement on a collective
basis is more practical for large portfolios of items).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
statement of financial position, including derivative financial instruments.

The maximum exposure is shown gross, without taking account of any collateral held or other
credit enhancements.

Note 2021 2020
RM'000 RM’000

ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 5 1,435,996 1,072,884
Reverse repurchase agreements 314,632 974,678
Financial assets at FVTPL 6 444,442 413,967
Financial investments at FVOCI 7 1,191,901 1,335,231
Loans, advances and financing* 8 1,304,456 1,343,303
Derivative financial assefs 9 706,669 1,296,293
Other asset™ 10 68,967 193,194
Total asset 5,467,063 6,629,550
Commitments and contingencies 1,145,896 1,429,925
Total credit exposure 6,612,959 8,059,475

* Excludes expected credit losses allowance amounting to RM2,571,000 (2020:
RM4,896,000).

** QOther assets exclude prepayment and refundable deposits amounting to RM1,598,000
(2020: RM1,883,000)

Risk concentrations for commitments and contingencies are based on the credit equivalent
balances derived based on credit conversion factor as per Bank Negara Malaysia guidelines.

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value, the amounts shown above represent

the current credit risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the
future as a result of changes in vaiues.
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istration No
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Financial assets are required under MFRS 7, to be categorised into 'neither past due nor
impaired’, ‘past due but not impaired’ or ‘impaired’.

The table below compares, for indicative purpose only, BNP Paribas’ Rating Scale with the
rating agencies ‘Long Term Currency Issuer Credit Ratings’ and ‘Long Term Local Currency
Senior Unsecure Rating’.

BNP Paribas Ratings Long-term Issuer/Unsec

Moody's S&P Fitch IBCA

1+ Excellent Aaa AAA AAA

1 Excellent Aal AA+ AA+

1- Excellent Aa2 AA AA

24 Very good Aa3 AA- AA-

A1 A+ A+

2 Very good A2 A A

2- Very good A3 A- A-

3+/3/3- Good Baal  BBB+ BBB+

4+/4/4- Above average Baa2 BBB BBB

5+/5/5- Average Baa3 BBB- BBB-

6+ Below average Ba1 BB+ BB+

6/6- Below average Ba2 BB BB

7+7 Poor Ba3 BB- BB

7- Poor B1 B+ B+

8+/8/8- Weak B2 B B

9+/9/9- Speculative B3 B- B-

Caal CCC+ CCC+

10+ Substandard Caa2 CCC CcC

Caal CccCcC- CCC-

10 Substandard Ca CcC cC

10- Substandard C c c

" Default D SDD DDD/DD/D
12 Inversible default
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit Risk (continued)
(continued)

2021

ECL Staging

Stage 2 Stage 3
Lifetime  Lifetime

ECL ECL Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM’000

Cash and short-term funds 1,435,996 1,435,996
1- 23,699 23,699
2+ 46,891 46,891

2 205 205
2- 1,352,124 1,352,124
3+ 850 850

3 12,227 12,227
Reverse repurchase agreements 314,632 314,632
2- 10,037 10,037
4+ 304,595 304,595
Financial assets at FVTPL 444,422 444,422
2- 444,422 444,422
Financial investments at FVOCI 1,191,901 1,191,901
2- 1,191,901 1,191,901
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit Risk (continued)
(continued)

2021
ECL Staging

Stage 2 Stage 3

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL

RM000  RM'000

Loans advances and 1,221,710 82,746

financing*
3 90,463
3- 245,045
4 105,565
4- 10,609
5+ 225,875
5 101,939 2,501
5- 15,108
6+ 63,918
6 6,022
6- 47,447 72,236
7+ 155,429
7 33,861
7- 118,404
8+ 2,025
8 8,009

94

Total
RM’000

1,304,456

90,463
245,045
105,565

10,609
225,875
104,440

15,108

63,918

6,022
119,683
155,429

33,861

118,404
2,025
8,009



No.
201001034168 (318091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

(continued)

2021

ECL Staging

Stage 2  Stage 3

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
Derivative financial assets 706,669 706,669
1- 216,714 216,714
2- 97,323 97,323
3+ 143,599 143,599
3 16,952 16,952
3- 33,073 33,073
4+ 59,482 59,482
4 21,317 21,317
4- 8,132 8,132
5+ 80,457 80,457
5 1,257 1,257
5- 23,021 23,021
6+ 427 427
6 654 654
6- 151 151
7+ 506 506
7 186 186
Unrated 3,418 3,418
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

(continued)

2021

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3

12-month Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000
Other asset 68,967 68,967
1- 9 9
2- 786 786
3+ 18,961 18,961
3 18,082 18,082
3- 7,660 7,660
4+ 12,890 12,890
5+ 2,565 2,565
5 3 3
6+ 1,080 1,080
Unrated 6,931 6,931
Gross carrying amount 5,384,297 82,746 5,467,043
Less: ECL (1,388) (1,183) (2,571)
Net carrying amount 5,382,909 81,563 5,464,472
* Excludes expected credit losses amounting to RM2,571,000 (2020: RM4,896,000).

** Other assets exclude prepayment and refundable deposits amounting to RM1,598,000

(2020: RM1,883,000)
Financial effects of collaterals
Coliateral is generally taken as security for credit exposures as a secondary source of

repayment in case the counterparty cannot meet its contractual repayment obligations from
cash flow generation. Types of collateral typically taken by the Bank includes

Cash and Margin Deposits
Land and building

The Bank also accepts non-tangible securities as support, such as guarantees from
corporates and institutions, central banks and general governments in a form of assignments
of contract proceeds and/or promissory notes.

Overall, there do not appear to be a significant deterioration in the quality of collateral.
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit Risk (continued)

Cash and short-term funds

1-
2+
2
2-
3+
3
4

Reverse repurchase
agreements

2-
3-
4+
5+

Financial assets at FVTPL
2-

Financial investments at
FVOCI

2-

(continued)

Stage 1

2020
ECL Staging
Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month
ECL

RM’000

1,072,884

7,712
2,016
1,664
1,064,948
816
5713

15

974,678

86,115
303,745
314,293
270,525

413,967
413,967

1,335,231
1,335,231

97

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL Total

RM'000  RM'000 RM’'000

1,072,884

7,712
2,016
1,664
1,054,948
816
5713

15

974,678

86,115
303,745
314,293
270,625

413,967
413,967

1,335,231
1,335,231
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Loans advances and
financing*

3+

3

3-

4+

4

5+

5

5-

6+

6

6-

7+

7

7-

8+

(continued)

1,240,718

19,769
26,002
334,857
165,332
90,421
123,472
13,986
65,265
202,564
53,224
1,001
57,753
40,505
37,497
12,507
6,563

o8

2020

ECL Staging

Stage 2 Stage 3

Lifetime  Lifetime

ECL ECL

RM’'000 RM'000
102,585
92,5693
9,390
602

Total
RM’000

1,343,303

19,769
26,002
334,857
155,332
90,421
123,472
13,986
65,265
202,564
53,224
1,001
150,346
40,505
37,497
12,507
6,563
9,390
602
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

(continued)

2020

ECL Staging

Stage 2 Stage 3

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL

RM’000 RM’000
Derivative financial assets 1,296,293
1- 607,700
2- 5,170
3+ 186,183
3 33,202
3- 69,500
4+ 117,347
4 30,467
4 20,215
5+ 51,773
5 157,033
5- 11
6+ 2,955
6- 529
7+ 49
7 1,063
Unrated 13,096

99

Total
RM’000

1,296,293
607,700
5,170
186,183
33,202
69,500
117,347
30,467
20,215
51,773
167,033
11
2,955
529

49
1,063
13,096



No
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

(continued)

2020

ECL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month Lifetime  Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’'000
Other asset 193,194 193,194
1- 1 1
3+ 4,460 4,460
3 9,189 9,189
3- 37,610 37,610
4+ 27,752 27,752
4 68,260 68,260
5+ 37,293 37,293
5- 25 25
Unrated 8,604 8,604
Gross carrying amount 6,526,965 102,585 6,629,550
Less: ECL (2,310) (2,586) (4,896)
Net carryving amount 6.524.655 99,999 6.624.654
* Excludes expected credit losses amounting to RM2,571,000 (2020: RM4,896,000).

> Other assets exclude prepayment and refundable deposits amounting to RM1,598,000

(2020: RM1,883,000)
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

Financial assets of the Bank are classified into three stages as below:
Stages Description

Stage 1: 12 months ECL - not credit For credit exposures where there have not

impaired been significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not credit
impaired upon origination, the ECL
associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months
will be recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired ~ For credit exposures where there have been
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit impaired,
the ECL associated with the probability of
default events occurring within the lifetime
ECL will be recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired Financial assets are assessed as credit
impaired when one or more objective
evidence of defaults that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset have occurred. For financial
assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL will be recognised.
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit Risk (continued)
(continued)
The Bank performed ECL sensitivity assessment on loans, advances and financing based on:
i) changes in % of GDP growth used for optimistic and adverse scenarios while all other

variables remain unchanged.

The table below outlines the effect on ECL with the changes in % of GDP growth used:

2021
RM'000
Optimistic +1.5% (887)
Adverse -1.5% 1,978
ii) changes in % of probability weightage used for optimist and adverse scenarios while

all other variables remain unchanged.

The table below outlines the effect on ECL with the changes in weightage used:

2021
Scenarios
Adverse (%) Optimist (%) RM000
1 +5% -5% 114
2 +10% -10% 246
3 +15% -15% 379

The above disclosure is intended to illustrate the relative sensitivity of the ECL allowance
calculation and is not predictive or indicative of future loss experience.
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit Risk (continued)

The Bank performed ECL sensitivity assessment on loans, advances and financing based on:
i) changes in % of GDP growth used for optimistic and adverse scenarios while all other
variables remain unchanged.

The table below outlines the effect on ECL with the changes in % of GDP growth used:

2020
RM'000
Optimistic +15% (3,840)
Adverse -15% 7,471
ii) changes in % of probability weightage used for optimist and adverse scenarios while

all other variables remain unchanged.

The table below outlines the effect on ECL with the changes in weightage used:

2020
Scenarios
Adverse (%) Optimist (%) RM’000
1 + 5% -5% 399
2 +10% -10% 719
3 +15% -15% 1,040

The above disclosure is intended to illustrate the relative sensitivity of the ECL allowance
calculation and is not predictive or indicative of future loss experience.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of incurring a loss of value due to adverse trends in market prices or
parameters, whether directly observable or not.

Observable market parameters include, but are not limited to, exchange rates, interest rates,
prices of securities and commodities (whether listed or obtained by reference to a similar
asset), prices of derivatives, prices of other goods, and other parameters that can be directly
inferred from them, such as credit spreads, volatilities and implied correlations or other similar
parameters.

Non-observable factors are those based on working assumptions such as parameters
contained in models or based on statistical or economic analysis, as confirmed by market
information.

Liquidity is an important component of market risk. In times of limited or no liquidity,
instruments or goods may not be tradable or may not be tradable at their estimated value.
This may arise, for example, due to low transaction volumes, legal restrictions or a strong
imbalance between demand and supply for certain assets.

The Bank’s primary tool for the systematic measuring and monitoring of market risk is the
Value at Risk (‘VaR’) calculation, which is measured and monitored at the regional level by
lines of businesses. VaR is an estimate of the expected loss in the value of the various regional
lines of businesses’ activities, where the Bank’s activities are rolied up into, over a one-day
time horizon. VaR allows for a consistent and uniform measure of market risk across all
applicable products and activities. To calculate VaR, the Bank uses historical simulation, which
measures risk across instruments and portfolios in a consistent and comparable way. This
approach assumes that historical changes in market values are representative of future
changes. The simulation is based upon date for the previous twelve months.

Besides VaR, other non-statistical limits such as basis point value and net open positions are
used as market risk tools to limit the risk to which the businesses can be exposed to.
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(c)

Market Risk (continued)

The VaR of the Bank at the end of the reporting period, based on one-day time horizon and
at 99% confidence level, is RM2,934,153 (2020: RM6,121,964). It represents the correlation
and consequent diversification effects between risk types and portfolio types across trading
and non-trading businesses. However, the use of this approach does not prevent losses
outside of these limits in the event of more significant market movements.

2021 2020
RM’'mil RM’mil
Aggregate VaR 29 6.1

The aggregate VaR includes the diversification effect of imperfect or negative correlations
between certain risk types. Therefore the aggregate VaR can be lower than the sum of
individual risk types on the same day (e.g. year end).

The maximum VaR of the Bank during the year is RM8,192,540 (2020: RM9,414,732) while
the minimum VaR during the year is RM1,521,329 (2020: RM1,928,770).

In practice, the actual trading results will differ from the VaR calculation and, in particular, the
calculation does not provide a meaningful indication of profit or loss in stressed market
conditions. To determine the reliability of the VaR models, actual outcomes are monitored
regularly to test the validity of the assumptions and the parameters used in the VaR
calculation.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the potential change in interest rate levels including changes in interest
rate differentials that arises mainly from the differing yields and maturity profiles between
assets and liabilities.

Interest rate is monitored through the market risk management systems as part of the overall
market risk management of the Bank. The following tables represents the Bank’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
dates as at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Interest Rate Risk (continued)
Sensitivity of profit

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Bank’s banking book to movement in interest
rates:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
+100 basis  -100 basis +100 basis -100 basis
point point point point
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Impact to profit (after tax) 4,443 (4,443) (1,992) 1,992

Sensitivity is measured using the EaR methodology. The treatments and assumptions
applied are based on the contractual repricing and remaining maturity of the products,
whichever is earlier. ltems with indefinite repricing maturity are treated based on the earliest
possible repricing date. The actual dates may vary from the repricing profile allocated due
to factors such as pre-mature withdrawals, prepayment and others.

A 100 bps parallel rate movement is applied to the yield curve to model the potential impact
on profit in the next 12 months from policy rate change.

The projection assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount and,
therefore, do not reflect the potential impact on profit of some rates changing while others
remain unchanged. The projections also assume that all other variables are held constant
and are based on a constant reporting date position and that all positions run to maturity.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Interest Rate Risk (continued)
Sensitivity of reserves

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Bank’s banking book to movement in interest
rates:

31 December 2021 31D
Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
+100 basis  -100 basis +100 basis  -100 basis
point point point point
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Impact to revaluation
reserve-financial
investments through other
comprehensive income (18,314) 18,314 (22,073) 22,073

A 100 bps parallel rate movement is applied to the yield curve to model the potential impact
on reserve in the next 12 months from changes in risk free rates. The impact on reserves
arises from changes in valuation of financial investments available-for-sale following
movements in risk free rates.

The projection assumes that all other variables are held constant. It also assumes a constant
reporting date position and that all positions run to maturity.

The above sensitivities of profit and reserves do not take into account the effects of hedging
and do not incorporate actions that the Bank would take to mitigate the impact of this interest
rate risk. In practice, the Bank proactively seeks to mitigate the effect of prospective interest
movements.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its cash flow obligations as they fall

due, such as upon the maturity of deposits and loan drawdowns.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee (‘ALCO’) is primarily responsible for the strategic
management of the Bank’s liquidity, the daily operations of which are carried out by the ALM
Desk of the Treasury Department.

ALCO monitors at its monthly meeting, adherence to the liquidity and mismatch limits, and
compliance with BNP Paribas Group worldwide, ALCO guidelines and Bank Negara
Malaysia’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio.

The table below analyses the Bank's non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.
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n No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

Financial assets have been reflected in the time band of the latest date on which they could
be repaid, unless earlier repayment can be demanded by the Bank. Financial liabilities are
included at the earliest date on which the counterparty can require repayment regardless of
whether or not such early repayment results in a penalty. If the repayment of a financial asset
or liability is triggered by, or is subject to, specific criteria, such as market price hurdles being
reached, the asset is included in the latest date on which it can be repaid regardless of early
repayment, the liability is included at the earliest possible date that the conditions can be
fulfilled without considering the probability of the conditions being met.

The contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities highlight the maturity
transformation which underpins the role of banks to lend longer-term but funded predominantly
by short-term liabilities such as customer deposits.

Customer assets and liabilities (including non-maturing savings/current deposits) are
represented on contractual basis or period when it can legally be withdrawn. On a behavioural
basis, the assets and liabilities cash flows may differ from contractual basis.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk to earnings and value of financial instruments caused by the
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. It is managed in conjunction with market risk.

The table below sets out the Bank’s exposure to currency risk. Included in the table are the
Bank’s financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.

119



1€6°019'Y

GE9'/8€E
GE0CLLL
0v.L‘2sS
zoL'oly

geyevle

ZLY'Yov'S

19689
699902
G8e'10e‘)
LO6°L6L L
ey'vvy
ze9'viE
966'GEY’L

000N
[eloL

SZL9

29.°69

oev'e
lev'ol
89
€€8°GS
188'G.

1602

9£8'89

000.NY
SIBUYI0

(212'28%)
SR TAZ
G£9'/8¢

868t
818'Ly

266°L€

L TAN A

€€1L0L
g8v'le

8056

000N
Adan3

743

(816'212°L) 6¥5'205°C

601'892°C

190°686
le.'0¢€)
vyyvoe

198°/87

L6L°0S0°L

02912

6YS'SLL
980282
061929

969t

000.A
asn

€2L'Y6L°)

or9‘gLlL
¥SL'€9€
065°LS

€€2°09Z°L

892°/6C'Y

162'Ly
9€6°€.LS
71£°866
LLL'G9S
(44444
ze9'vie
956°2GE’L

000NN
JAN

deb Aouauing

sofjiqel [ejoL

Ueo| wia) pajeulpiogng

sanjjigel| Jaui0

liqel| |eldueul} sAleAllsd
SUOIJNYISUI [B1DUBUL JBY)O pue

syueq Jo sjuawaoeld pue sysodaq

sJawo)sno wouy sjisodeq

sanliqel

sjoessy |ejo)

sjasse Jayl0

S]aSSe |e|oueuly aAeAlIeQ
Bujoueuly pue sasueApe ‘sueon
IDOAS e Ssjuswisanul [eroueul
1d1A4 e siasse |eioueul
sjuawaalbe aseyoindal 9sIoAdy
sSpuny wis)-loys pue ysen
sjoessy

1¢0c

(penunuoo) ysry Aouaun)

ey

(@3NNILNOD) S3I0IT0d INIWIDVYNVIN MSTH TVIONVNIA

(Q3INNILNOD) LZ0Z ¥3FINTOAA L€ AIANT HVIA TVIONVYNIL FHL HOH

SININ3LVYLS TVIONVNI4 3HL OL S31ON

(eisAejeyy ul pajelodioou))

dVvHY349 VISAYIVIA SY8IdVd dNg

(1-160816) 891¥€01L00L0Z

ON uo

1€



19L'79.L'S

2es'9ze’|
€LLLLLL
£5€'68¢C
£88°0v8

028°00€‘C

¥59'v29°9

¥61°c6l
£62'962°L
Lov'eee’l
LEZ'GEE L
196'CLy
8/9'V.6
¥88'¢20°L

000NN
[ ol

(egz'sy)

0,0'v6

€15°C
296°Ly

1€€

8616V
181'sy

S
860°GE

¥89°'0l

000.NY
siay10

(1L£8'v08)

609°LLL

660°€
8€0°0Y

€1LE'9¥9

651°8C

811712
(21)

L0228
zsL'szl

9€8’L

000.NY
dN3

(P12‘o9s'L)

¥S1'GLEC

GESPLL L
ran
£GE'G8Z
¥6¥'8S1

81€°'G08

0v6'vL8

0626
GeLol
950'681
65€°109

009'v

000NN
asn

743

1ee'el6'c

826'215C

GZE'90L
612210°L

6€.°GE

SPL'8Ly'L

671'1GG'S

9lv'egl
€58'89L°L
665°020°L
2.8°€EL
196°Cly
8/9'v.6
¥92°GS0°L

000N
HAN

deb Aouauny

soniiqer [eyoL

saljljiqel| 1By1o

saljljiqel| [eloueuy sAeAlsq

juswaalbe aseyounday
suonN}IsUl [elouBUl JBYJ0 pue

syueq Jo sjuswaoe|d pue sysoda(

sJawo}snd wolj sysodag

sahijiger

sjessy |ejol

sjosse Jayj0
S}OSSE [BIoUBUl DAllBALID]
BulouBUl pUE SBOUBADE ‘SUEOT
1D0A4 e SIUBWISaAUl [eloueUl
1d.LA4 Je sjesse [eloueul
sjuswealbe aseyoindal asionay
SpuN} WJS}-L0YS pue ysen
s)ossy

0c0c

(panuyuod) ysiy Aouaung

Y

(A3INNILNOD) SAID1N0d LNIFWIDYNYIN MSIY TVIONYNIA

(Q3INNILNOD) 1L.Z0Z ¥IFNTDAA L€ A3ANT HVIA TVIONVNIL FHL HO4

SININILVLS TVIONVNI4 3HL OL S310N

(eisAejepy ui pajesodiodu))

avHd38 VISAVIVIN Svaldvd dNg

(1-160816) 891¥£01L00L0Z

ON uonels|

L€



31

istration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

Currency Risk (continued)

The table below shows the sensitivity of the Bank’s profit to movement in foreign exchange
rates:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
crease
1% depreciation 1% depreciation
1% appreciation in in foreign 1% appreciation in in foreign
— currency
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Impact to profit
(after tax) (12,5632) 12,532 (15,951) 15,951

The impact on profit arises from transactional exposures. The projection assumes that
foreign exchange rates move by the same amount and, therefore, do not reflect the potential
impact on profit and reserves of some rates changing while others remain unchanged. The
projections also assume that all other variables are held constant and are based on a
constant reporting date position and that all positions run to maturity.
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The following financial assets and liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting

agreements and similar agreements:

Gross
amount of
recognised
financial
assets/
financial
liabilities
RM’'000
2021
Assets
Derivative financial assets 706,669
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities 552,740
2020
Assets
Derivative financial assets 1,296,293
Liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities 1,111,173

123

Related amount not set off in the
statement of financial position

Financial
instrument
RM’000

(442,257)

(442,257)

(666,166)

(666,166)

Financial
collateral
RM’000

(62,008)

(1,057,583)

(184,563)

(1,151,905)

Net
amount
RM’000

202,404

(947,100)

445,564

(706,898)
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and off-balance sheet financial
instruments. Fair value is the amount at which the financial asset could be exchanged or a financial
liability could be settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm'’s length transaction.
The information presented herein represents the best estimates of fair values as at the end of the
reporting period.

Where available, quoted and observable market prices are used as the measure of fair values.
Where such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair values are estimated based
on appropriate methodologies and assumptions on risk characteristics of various financial
instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors. Changes in the
uncertainties and assumptions could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair value
estimates.

MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires each class of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the statement of financial position after initial recognition to be categorised according to a
hierarchy that reflects the significance of inputs used in making the measurements, in particular,
whether the inputs used are observable or unobservable. The following levels of hierarchy are used
for determining and disclosing the fair value of those financial instruments and non-financial assets:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
characteristics of an active market include the existence of a sufficient frequency and
volume of activity and of readily available prices;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices); these
techniques are regularly calibrated and the inputs are corroborated with information from
active markets; and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). An unobservable input is a parameter for which there are no market
data available and that is therefore derived from proprietary assumptions about what other
market participants would consider when assessing fair value.

For financial instruments disclosed in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a difference
between the transaction price and the fair value may arise at initial recognition. This ‘Day
One Profit’ is deferred and released to the profit and loss account over the period during
which the valuation parameters are expected to remain non-observable. When parameters
that were originally non-observable become observable, or when the valuation can be
substantiated in comparison with recent similar transactions in an active market, the
unrecognised portion of the day one profit is released to profit or loss account.
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of movements in Level 3 financial instruments

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Derivative Financial Assets
At 1 January 29,736 30,796
Gain recognised in profit or loss
Realised (8,968) (9,372)
Unrealised (10,135) 8,312
10,633 29,736
At 31 December
Derivative Financial Liabilities
At 1 January 18,307 9,321
Loss recognised in profit or loss
Realised (9,165) (1,785)
Unrealised (7,542) 10,771
At 31 December 1,600 18,307

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction under normal market conditions.

However, for certain assets such as loans, deposits and derivatives, fair values are not readily
available as there is no open market where these instruments are traded.

The fair values for these instruments are estimated based on the assumptions and techniques
below.

These methods are subjective in nature and therefore the fair values presented may not be indicative
of the actual realisable value.

Q) Cash and short-term funds

The carrying amounts are a reasonable estimate of the fair values because of their short-
term nature.

(ii) Reverse repurchase agreements
The estimated fair value is based on quoted and observable market prices at the end of the

reporting period. Where such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair
value is estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flows techniques.

127



32.

istration No.

201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(iif)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial assets through profit and loss and through other comprehensive income

The estimated fair value is based on quoted and observable market prices at the end of the
reporting period. Where such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair
value is estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flows techniques. Where
discounted cash flows technique is used, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
based on current market rates for similar instruments at the end of the reporting period.
Loans, advances and financing

The fair values of fixed rate loans with remaining maturity of less than one year and variable
rate loans are estimated to approximate their carrying values.

For fixed rate loans with maturities of more than one year, the fair values are estimated
based on discounted future cash flows of contractual instalment payments.,

For variable rate loans with maturities of more than one year, the fair values have been
determined with generally pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis with the
most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

In respect of credit-impaired loans, the fair values are deemed to approximate the carrying
values, net of individual impairment allowance for bad and doubtful debts and financing.

Deposits from customers

Deposits from customers are valued at carrying amounts for all amounts on demand and
below one year, while deposits over one year have been valued at discounted cash flows.

Deposits and placements from banks and other financial institutions

Deposits and placements from banks and other financial institutions are valued at carrying
amount.

Derivative financial instruments
The fair value of foreign exchange derivatives, interest rate derivatives and equity

derivatives is the estimated amount that the Bank would receive or pay to terminate the
contracts at the end of the reporting period.
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No.
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The components of Tier | and Tier Hl capital are as follows:

Paid-up share capital
Retained profits
Other disclosed reserves

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

55% of cumulative gains from financial instruments at FVOCI
Hedging reserve

Regulatory reserve

Total Tier 1 capital

Expected credit losses
Subordinated term loan

Total Tier 2 capital

Total Capital base

Before deducting proposed dividend
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio
Tier 1 Capital Ratio
Total Capital Ratio

After deducting proposed dividend
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio
Tier 1 Capital Ratio
Total Capital Ratio

130

2021
RM'000

650,000
210,278
17,017

877,295

(3,596)
(965)
(893)

(14,369)

857,472

2,791
387,635

390,426

1,247,898

24.584%
24.584%
35.777%

24.562%
24.562%
35.756%

2020
RM'000

650,000
223,911
6,554
880,465
(24)

(3,416)
(3,605)

873,420

5,588

5,588

879,008

18.905%
18.905%
19.026%

18.905%
18.905%
19.026%
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istration No
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CONTINUED)

The breakdown of risk-weighted assets by each major risk category is as follows:

2021
Risk
weighted
assets
RM’000 RM’000
0% 1,911,291 3,917,160
20% 1,358,513 271,703 760,182
50% 94,122 47,061 146,818
100% 1,795,165 1,795,165 2,121,614
Credit risk 2,113,929
Market risk 1,083,291
Operational risk 290,757
Total risk-weighted assets 3,487,977

131

2020
Risk
weighted
assets
RM000

152,036
73,409
2,121,614

2,347,059
1,868,985
403,981

4,620,025



istration No
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW

The Bank launched its Islamic banking business under its Islamic Banking Window on 9 April 2012.
The financial position of the Islamic Banking Window of the Bank as at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
and results for the financial year ended on the dates are summarised as follows:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020
RMWM'000 RM’000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds (a) 39,411 22,202
Other assets (c) 9,766
Property, plant and equipment (d)
Intangible assets (e)
TOTALASSETS 39,411 31,968
LIABILITIES AND ISLAMIC BANKING FUNDS
Deposits from customers ) 11,253 10,079
Other liabilities 5,968 82
TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,221 10,161
Capital fund 26,850 26,850
Accumulated losses (4,660) (5,043)
Islamic banking funds 22,190 21,807
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ISLAMIC
BANKING FUNDS 39,411 31,968

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Income derived from investment of Islamic
banking funds and depositors’ funds (9) 548 401
Profit expense to depositors (80) (57)
Net income derived from investment of
Islamic banking funds and depositors’ funds 468 344
Other operating income (h) 1,610 1,038
Other operating expenses (i) (1,695) (1,858)
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 383 (476)
Income tax expense )]
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 383 (476)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 383 (476)
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istration No
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(a) CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

2021 2020
RM’000 RM'000
At amortised cost
Cash and balances with licensed banks 5,401 3,205
Money at call and deposit placements maturing
within one month 34,010 18,997
39,411 22,202

(b) LOANS, ADVANCES AND FINANCING
Included in the Bank’s loan, there is funding extended to BNP Paribas Najmah under Profit
Sharing Investment Account (PSIA) amounting to RM30.02 million (FY2020: RM nif). The
PSIA is a contract based on the Wakalah principle.

(c)  OTHER ASSETS

2021 2020
RM'000 RM’'000
Other receivables, deposit and prepayments 9,766
9,766
(d) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Office
equipment and Computer
Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000
2021
Cost
At beginning of year/At end of year 6 23 29
At beginning of year/At end of year 6 23 29
Net Book Value

As of 31 December 2021
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(d) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

2020

Cost

At beginning of year/At end of year

At beginning of year/At end of year

Net Book Value
As of 31 December 2020

(e) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At 1 January/31 December

At 1 January
Amortisation for the year

Net Book Value

Office
equipment and Computer
RM'000 RM'000
6 23
6 23

2021
RM’000

41

41

41
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Total
RM’'000

29

29

2020
RM'000

41

41

41
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

() DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
At Amortised Cost
Non-Mudharabah Fund
Demand deposits 11,253 4,572
Commodity Murabahah 5,507
11,253 10,079
(i) Maturity structure of Commodity Murabahah is as follows
2021 2020
RM’000 RM'000
Due within six months 5,507
(i) The deposits are sourced from the following types of customers
2021 2020
RM’000 RM'000
Business enterprises 2
Non-bank financial institutions 11,253 10,077
11,253 10,079

(9) INCOME DERIVED FROM INVESTMENT OF ISLAMIC BANKING FUNDS AND
DEPOSITORS' FUNDS

2021 2020
RM’000 RM'000
Money at call and deposit placement with
financial institutions 548
548
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(h) OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Fee income:
Commission
Other fee income

Foreign exchange
- Unrealised gain/(loss)

Others

(i) OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel costs (Note i)
Establishment costs (Note ii)
Marketing expenses (Note iii)

Administration and general expenses (Note iv)

(i) Personnel costs

Salaries bonuses and allowance
Defined contribution retirement plan

Other staff related expenses

138

2021
RM'000

187

78
1,344

1,610

2021
RM’000

1,359
121

214

1,695

1,020
173
166

1,359

2020
RM’'000

38

(10)
1,010

1,038

2020
RM'000

1,564
119

180

1,858

1,245
213

1,554
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No
201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(i) OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Establishment costs

Rental of premises
Information technology costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset

Others

(i) Marketing expenses

Others

(iv) Administration and general expenses

Legal and professional fees

Communication and transportation

Others

2021
RM’000

13
80
28

121

137
19
58

214

2020
RM’000

81
16

22

119

163
17

180

Included in administration and general expenses is the Shariah Committee’s

remuneration of RM135,000 (2020: RM159,000).

)] INCOME TAX EXPENSE

A numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to profit/(loss) before tax at the applicable
statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Bank

is as follows:

Profit/(Loss) before taxation

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24%

2021
RM’000

383

2020
RM’'000

(476)
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
ISLAMIC BANKING WINDOW (CONTINUED)

(k) CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The components of Tier | and Tier 1l capital are as follows

2021 2020
RM’000 RM’000
Tier-1 capital
Paid-up share capital 26,850 26,850
Accumulated losses (4,660) (5,043)
Total Tier 1 capital 22,190 21,807
Total Capital base 22,190 21,807
Capital Ratios
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio 525.331% 165.606%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 525.331% 165.606%
Total Capital Ratio 525.331% 165.606%

The breakdown of risk-weighted assets by each major risk category is as follows:

2021 2020
Risk Risk
weighted weighted
assets assets
RM'000 RM’000 RM’000

0% 34,742 19,694

20% 4,659 932

100% 10 10 9,891 9,891
Credit risk 942 9,891
Market risk 1,973 1,941
Operational risk 1,309 1,336
Total risk-weighted assets 4,224 13,168
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”) letter on Additional Measures to assist Borrowers/Customers
Affected by COVID-19 outbreak

Further to the initial letter on 24 March 2020, BNM had issued another letter on 24 July 2020 which
introduced additional relief measures in the form of targeted repayment assistance to the borrowers
experiencing temporary financial constraints due to COVID-19. The additional measures are payment
assistance targeted to the B40 individuals and microenterprises. These measures are focused for
borrowers who experienced loss of job, and for individual and SMEs whose incomes have been
impacted by the pandemic.

The assistance were extended to facilities approved before 1 October 2020 which are not past due for
more than 90 days at the time the borrowers request for the repayment assistance. The additional
repayment assistance will be available to eligible borrowers until 30 June 2021.

The repayment assistance does not automatically result in a stage transfer under MFRS 9 in the
absence of other factors indication evidence of significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”). Judgement
and more holistic assessment of all relevant indicators and information, such as historical repayment
and delinquency trend pre-COVID-19 pandemic, are applied in determining SICR. In addition, the loan
that is approved under repayment assistance is exempted to be reported as rescheduling and
restructuring (“R&R”) and credit-impaired in the Central Credit Reference Information System
(“CCRIS”).

BNM policy documents on Capital Adequacy Framework (Capital Components)

On 9 December 2020, BNM issued revised policy document, Capital Adequacy Framework (Capital
Components). The key addition to the revised policy documents is the transitional arrangements for
financial institutions on provisions for expected credit loss (“ECL”"). Under this revised policy document,
a financial institution is allowed to add back the loss allowance for non-credit-impaired exposures (i.e
Stage 1 and Stage 2 provisions) to Common Equity Tier 1 (“‘CET1”) Capital.

In applying the definition of defaulted exposures under the above policies to loans for which repayment
assistance is extended:

) The determination of “days past due” should be based on the new repayment terms of a loan
that has been reschedule and restructured. Where the repayment terms include a repayment
deferral, the determination of days past due should exclude the deferred repayment period;

(i) For loans to individuals or SMEs, a borrower should not be considered to be in default based
on “unlikeness to pay” at the time the repayment assistance is granted, except where the
loan/financing is sold by the banking institution at a material loss or the borrower/customer is
subjected to bankruptcy actions; and

() For loans to corporates, the assessments of “unlikeness to repay” should not be based solely
on the borrower taking up an offer of repayment assistance extended by the banking institution
but based on a more holistic assessment of all relevant indicators and information available
on the corporate borrower.
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR END (CONTINUED)
Effect of LIBOR Reform

The discontinuation of London Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) by the end of 2021 and the transition to
alternative RFRs could pose challenges to the Bank as the transition from LIBOR is expected to bring
about significant legal, valuation, accounting, risk management and system implication.

Bank Negara Malaysia (‘BNM”) has established key signposts to ensure that banks adequately
prepare for and manage a smooth transition away from LIBOR. These include key timelines to be
adhered to for engagement with customers to renegotiate contracts and incorporate fallback
provisions in loan and derivative contracts, completion of the assessment on operational readiness
and capability to support products references to RFRs and resolution of all residual risks and
impediments to issue products referenced to RFRs.

As part of the reforms noted above

BNM introduced the Malaysia Overnight Rate (“MYOR”) as the new alternative reference rate, which
will run in parallel with the existing KLIBOR, providing the market with the flexibility to choose either
MYOR or KLIBOR as the reference rate for pricing of financial instruments. On 1 January 2023,
BNM will discontinue the publication of the 2— and 12-month KLIBOR tenors, which are the least
referenced rates in the market for financial contracts. The remaining one-, three— and six-month
KLIBOR tenors, which continue to reflect an active underlying market, will be reviewed in the second
half of 2022. The Financial Markets Committee (“FMC”) will engage the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association (“ISDA”) to ensure continuity of KLIBOR derivatives contracts in the event
of a temporary or permanent discontinuation of KLIBOR publication.

The UK Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) has decided not to compel the panel banks to
participate in the USD LIBOR submission process after the end of 2021 and to cease oversight of
these benchmark interest rates.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank hold the following financial instruments which are referenced to

the current benchmark interest rates and have yet to transition to an alternative interest rate
benchmark:

Of which, have yet to transition to

Nominal amount as at  an alternative benchmark interest

31 December 2021 as at 31 December 2021
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
Derivatives
Asset/(Liabilities) 58,035,425 (47,681,088) 30,745,152 (16,954,726)
Of which, have yet to fransition to
Carrying amount as at  an alternative benchmark interest
31 December 2021 as at 31 December 2021
Assets Assets
RM'000 RM’000
Loans, advances and 1,304,456 749,671

financing (Gross)
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BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

The Directors of BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD state that, in their opinion, the accompanying
financial statements are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 in

Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as of 31 December
2021 and of the financial performance and the cash flows of the Bank for the year ended on that

date.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated on 8 June 2022,
J P

DATO’ MOHAMED KHADAR BIN MERICAN

FAISAL BIN ISMAIL
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201001034168 (918091-T)

BNP PARIBAS MALAYSIA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATUTORY DECLARATION BY THE OFFICER PRIMARILY RESPONSIBLE
FOR THE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK

I, ril
o a
fi m
believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

LO CHIANG LOONG

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed ANTHONY LO CHIANG LOONG at

KUALA LUMPUR this 8 June 2022. AYA
Before me, No: W 871 R4
R.S VANMATHI

01.01.2022 - 31.12.2024
*

*
COMMISSIONE FOR OATHS

AL AYS*

No. 2-8, 2nd Floor Wisma Konwa
No. 40 & 42, Jalan Tun Perak
(Lebuh Ampang)

50050 Kuala Lumpur
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